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Zicom Group Limited

Chairman’s Message

TRANSITING AN INFLECTION POINT
Dear Shareholders,

The global economic climate continues to be ungerdéthough the USA economy has been showing signs of
sustained recovery. Confidence in the Asia Pac#gian has been dampened by the restructuring ilCtieese
economy, continuing Euro-Zone's inertia, India’sdpeoning account deficit compounded by politicatentainties
and Australia’s resource slump. These have invariahpacted against the Group’s businesses. Thanksito
diversified revenue base and the Group’s ventuesithve been judiciously and prudently carried yuty directors

are confident that notwithstanding temporary putiksa the Group is confident of a sustainable gronwdmentum

in the years to come.

Results

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the finangedr just ended on 30 June 2013 dropped by 8.3% fro
S$130.65m in the previous year to S$119.85m. Thei@saconsolidated profits after tax for the fulleyedropped
by 11.6% from S$7.84m in the previous year to S$%8.9

Notwithstanding the results, the Group’s total cadhrz®s remain strong at S$21.36m and its on-gaiogpgcts
remain robust. For this reason the Group has detidethintain its rate of dividends payable to shalders.

An Inflection Point

Your directors have continuously reviewed the Groyg@gormance since its reverse-takeover in 2008.Group
has consistently maintained a healthy profit leyiging a return on equity that ranges from 8.1%4%05 % from
2009 to 2013 successfully traversing the globaririal crisis in 2007-2009.
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However, your directors recognize that the Group is at an inflecttion point. Group’s total revenue for thgears to
2013 show an average negative compound annual gratel{CAGR) of 3%. The precision engineering segment
however shows a positive CAGR 46%.
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The Group first initiated steps to transit this éafion point 3 years ago. It invested in techn@egis a new driver
for sustainable growth while at the same time maiethiits focus on innovation and product development
productivity improvements and new market penetraf@nts on-going core businesses. Existing corsimsses
are the back-bone of the Group with their recurreménue and cash flow. As such the Group continuooslyses

on innovative improvements to maintain their growthowever challenges in such businesses are wellrehtee
and innovation space limited. Innovation and tedbgies will be the main drivers of growth globallyad Group
embarked on limited investments in disruptive tetbgies 3 years ago, utilizing its strong cash fasj without
external borrowing.

Commercialisation of Technology Investments

The three technology investments which the Groupehdsarked on have now reached a stage of commeatiatis
into the global market. Collectively these techmggianvestments are expected to be able to makeséiyso
contribution to the Group’s profits in the comingdncial year.

Creating an Integrated Platform

In recognition of our success in bringing theseufive technologies to a commercial stage, our lyrmined
precision engineering subsidiary Sys-Mac EngingegirAutomation Pte Ltd (Sys-Mac) was awarded the stafu
a medical technology “private sector translator” éysingapore government agency responsible forlaleiwne
enterprises with a cash grant of S$4.5m. The grzatiles the Group to set up a first of its kind comuiaé entity in
Singapore, focused on translating medical technydlutgllectual properties into tangible medical ideg for various
research institutions, universities, hospitals @uthnology spin-off companies. A Research Cooparadigreement
with one of Singapore largest health clusters toeuadte joint research and development of cliniedhyen
inventions using our platform is being finalizechi§ cooperation also facilitates the Group’s custoateess to
clinical trials to bridge an existing gap in thedb medtech eco-system.

This has resulted in an integrated platform forghmwvth of medtech being established, generatingcapabilities
which the Group can market to the medtech sectorGrrbep is also positioned upfront to identify eastage new
technologies possessing good potentials for seediments. The integrated activities of precisiogireering and
technologies will be designated as “Precision Ergying & Technologies” segment.

Growth momentum for the Group’s new technologies witkederate as the Group’s technology integrated platfo
strengthens.

Continuing Growth Sectors

The precision engineering segment has achievedvarage CAGR of 46% in the last 5 years. With the
commercialisation of the new medtech start-ups ggimomentum, we are confident that growth rateimdluster
can be maintained.

Notwithstanding that the Group’s existing core busiesssuffered an average negative CAGR of 3% inatbtes|
years, we are confident that the coming years walpesitive growth rates. Business prospects renohinst while
the Group continues to focus on development anduetdty enhancements.

Innovative Culture

Skills in research and development in disruptiveht®logies help to enhance the culture of innowvathmat is
permeating the Group’s entire spectrum. Cross ifatibn of skills in the Group will be facilitated sorengthen the
entire Group’s capability.

Enhancing Shareholders’ Value

The Group has shown great resilience and has beesistantly profitable in the last 5 years givingeapectable
return on equity from 8.1% to 19.5%. However its shalue has performed below its NTA of S$0.35 (A$0[=0)
share in the last 12 months. With its various grosttiategies gaining traction, your directors argfickent that
shareholders’ value will be accordingly enhanced.
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Appreciation

| take this opportunity to thank the Board for ttggiidance and support in setting the growth dioaxstifor the Group
and to convey my appreciation to the managemenatednployees for their entrepreneurship, diligeand strong
commitment, without which the Group would not have eedd its continuous success. | would also like &mkh
our shareholders for their continuous support.

GLSim
Chairman



Zicom Group Limited

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Giok Lak Sim, FCPA
Chairman and Group Managing Director, Age 67

Experience and Expertise

Appointed to the Board on 5 April 1995. Chairman &ahaging Director of Zicom Group Limited and Extee Chairman
of all its subsidiaries. Experienced in public aguiing, corporate development, financial and indaismanagement as well
as international trade.

Singapore Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Yead\{ktrial Products), 2008.
Member of the Management Policy Advisory Committe8BRING, Singapore.
Member of Entrepreneurship Review Committee (EnRC)

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Executive Chairman of all subsidiaries

Chairman of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
77,474,368 ordinary shares

Kok Hwee Sim, BSc, MSc
Executive Director, Age 35

Experience and expertise

Mr Kok Hwee Sim was appointed to the Board on 2véxober 2007. As Executive Director of the Group,responsibilities
include human resource development, business Eaogsovements, restructuring and acquisitionstegasury management.
On 1 September 2013, Mr Sim was appointed ManaBingctor of iPtec Pte Ltd, a wholly-owned subsigligorincipally
engaged in medical technology translation servidds Sim graduated with a Bachelors degree in InthldEngineering and
Operations Research from the University of Michigath Honours (Magna Cum Laude) and a Masters ddgr&ancial
Engineering from Columbia University, New York. MroK Hwee Sim is the eldest son of the Chairman andadiag
Director, Mr G L Sim and director of substantiahstholder, SNS Holdings Pte Ltd.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

Executive Director of Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd andé&itor of its subsidiaries
Director of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Managing Director of iPtec Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
1,258,180 ordinary shares and 280,000 options
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Board of Directors

Independent Directors

Yian Poh Lim, BSc, MSc
Independent Director, Age 67

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 24 July 2006. Yian Poh has more than 20 years of extensive experientieeimanking and
finance industry. In 1993, he set up Yian Poh Aiges, a financial consultancy and investment fithe. has been an Honorary
Commercial Advisor to The Administrative Committeel@xing Economic Development Zone, China since 2008is also
a member of the advisory panel of the Singaporel fdanufacturer’s Association.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Independent Director of Casa Holdings Limited (apped 4 November 2008)
Independent Director of TTJ Holdings Limited (apped 5 July 1996)

Special responsibilities

Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Non-executive Director of Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
488,000 ordinary shares

Frank Leong Yee Yew, MBA, FCA (England & Wales), FCA(Singapore)
Independent Director, Age 70

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 24 July 2006. Extensixgegence in auditing, financial management ang@a@te secretarial
work, having practised as a partner in an audit énd worked as a company secretary, finance maaaddinancial controller
in a leading property development company and weain acquisitions and major developments.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Independent Director of TTJ Holdings Limited (apgted 11 January 2010)

Special responsibilities

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Non-executive Director of Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
524,364 ordinary shares

lan Robert Millard, FCA, FAICD
Independent Director, Age 74

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 23 November 2006. Extensixperience in public accounting and corporateetagal work.
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountantshw80 years as a partner in major accounting firm@ueensland and a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Diret.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities
Chairman of Audit Committee

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
592,250 ordinary shares
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Board of Directors

Independent Directors

Shaw Pao Sze
Independent Director, Age 69

Experience and expertise
Appointed to the Board on 19 February 2010. MnBRao Sze holds a Master Foreign-Going Certifichteompetency and

has extensive experiences in maritime industry fneamaging liner and ship chartering services, aatelanning in one of
the world’s largest shipping lines and consultaseyices for transport engineering, maritime angiskics planning for
infrastructure projects.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Synergy Metals Ltd (Australia) (appointed 15 Octo®@10)

Special responsibilities
None

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
30,000 options

Alternate Director

Kok Yew Sim, BSc
Alternate Director to Mr Kok Hwee Sim, Age 33

Experience and expertise

Appointed as Alternate Director to Mr Kok Hwee Sam 5 July 2010. Mr Sim is the Chief Executive Offiof Sys-
Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd (Sys-Mac) andrésponsible for Sys-Mac's growth strategies, dVera
administration and management of its business petations. Mr Sim graduated with a Bachelors degréElectrical
and Electronics Engineering from the Universitpb€higan with Honours (Summa Cum Laude). He issheond son
of the Chairman and Managing Director, Mr G L Sind @irector of substantial shareholder, SNS HoldinggsLtd.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

Alternate Director to Mr Kok Hwee Sim in Zicom Hahgjs Pte Ltd
Director of Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte htdl its subsidiaries
Director of Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
1,070,253 ordinary shares and 280,000 options




Zicom Group Limited

Company Secretaries

Lim Bee Chun, Jenny, FCCA
Joint Company Secretary, Age 40

Experience and expertise

Ms Jenny Lim has been the Group’s Financial Coletraince 2005. She is a qualified accountant afélw of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants fréva United Kingdom since 1998. Ms Lim has over l1@rgef audit
and tax experience in an international public antiog firm prior to joining the Group.

Other current directorships and former directorstspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

Director of Zicom Pte Ltd

Joint Company Secretary of all subsidiaries in 8aye except for MTA-Sysmac Automation Pte Ltd
Joint Company Secretary of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at d#tsigning the Directors’ Report
664,563 ordinary shares and 280,000 options

Surendra Kumar, CPA
Joint Company Secretary, Age 53

Mr Kumar is the Finance Manager of Cesco Austraiimited and holds a Bachelors degree in Commerce Aookland
University and is a Certified Practicing AccountaHe has had 30 years of experiences in auditindysimial and
management accounting prior to joining the Groupdas.

Other current directorships and former directorstspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities
Director of Cesco Equipment Pty Limited
Company Secretary of Cesco Australia Limited and Cesgopment Pty Limited

Relevant interests in shares and options as at d@dtsigning the Directors’ Report
15,000 ordinary shares and 120,000 options
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Directors’ Report 2013

Your directors present their report on the consiéid accounts of Zicom Group Limited for the yeaaded 30 June 2013.
Directors

The following persons were directors of Zicom Grduimited during the financial year and up to theéedaf this report.
Directors were in office for this entire period.

Mr. G L Sim (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. K H Sim (Executive Director)

Mr. Y P Lim (Independent)

Mr. F Leong (Independent)

Mr. I R Millard (Independent)

Mr. S P Sze (Independent)

Mr. K'Y Sim (Alternatérelctor to K H Sim)

Principal Activities

The Group’s principal activities comprise the mautifiring of deck machinery, offshore structuragdfimetering stations,
process plants, foundation equipment and concreters) precision engineered machinery and sentizeébe offshore
marine, oil and gas, construction, electronicsirtadical and agriculture industries.

Consolidated Results
The Group recorded the following consolidated rssdiliring the year as compared with those of ptesiear:-

Key Financials Change Year ended Year ended
(%) 30 June 13 30 June 12
(S$ million) (S$ million)
Revenue -8.3 119.85 130.65
Net profits after tax (NPAT) -11.6 6.93 7.84

The Group’s cash balances remain strong. As atu88 2013, the group’s total cash and bank balanees S$21.36m as
compared with S$24.45m as at 30 June 2012.

Dividends

The Group has decided to pay a final dividend ao$tAalian cents 0.55 per share (2012: Australiatso@®5) making the
full year dividends to 1 Australian cent per shaitee final dividend will be fully paid out of Condwtoreign Income under
the provisions of the Australian Income Tax ActccArdingly, withholding tax will not apply to none&tralian residents.

The record date for the final dividend will be 16W¢mber 2013 and the payment date is 29 Novemides. 20

Review of Operations

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the full yisa8$119.85m as compared with S$130.65m in theiquswear, a
decrease of 8.3%. The Group’s full year net cadated profits after tax attributable to member8@oJune 2013 are
S$6.93m as compared with S$7.84m in the previoas gedecrease of 11.6%.

The net profit margin achieved for the full yeabi8% as compared with 6.1% in the previous yelae. 0.3% decrease is
mainly attributable to unrealised mark-to-markethange losses and the extended gestation costseo$tart-up
investments.

Earnings per share dropped from Singapore 3.6% ¢er®.24 cents per share a decrease of Singaptieénts.
Net tangible assets per share increased from Songa&4.22 cents to 35.05 cents per share.

Return on equity, based on average of the openidglasing equity, for the year was 8.1% as comp#wedl 7% in the
previous year.

The average rates for currency translation formaeeand expenses are A$1 to S$1.2664 (2012: SH1.a6a4d for balance
sheet items A$1 to S$1.1699 (2012: S$1.2917).

The results for the full year have been impacteditmealised mark-to-market exchange losses on hgdgstruments,
delayed shipments in 2 significant orders of carwdion equipment at the end of the financial yetlay in order
confirmation in our oil and gas projects and logses extended gestation of our various technologgstments.

The Group’s businesses are expected to continbe tesilient in the midst of structural changethimglobal economies.
China, under a new leadership, has been focusimgpmve the efficiency of its economy starting witfstructuring its
banking systems. This has resulted in tighteningafiey supply and highly geared inefficient entiegs are expected to
fall or be merged and development is expectedaw slown. The Indian economy likewise has been sigwiown. The
impact against resource-based economies such aslass being felt. The European Union’s econasigxpected to
remain flat and possibly weaken further. The USA adapanese economies appear to show recovery @t BEonomic
data show that the Chinese economy appears to theeanend. However, the general global recovery mesrfaagile.
-8-
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At an Inflection Point

Although the Group’s core businesses are builtmmg foundation, your Board has recognized tha@taip has reached
an inflection point. Group’s annual revenue in i 5 years from 2009 to 2013 show an averagetinegsompound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 3%. The precision engjimg segment, however, shows a positive CAGR of 46%.

To transit this inflection point, 3 years ago, tBmup commenced to invest in new disruptive teobgies focused on
medical and semi-conductor technologies that theufrcan contribute synergistic support in engimgerand
manufacturing in our precision engineering segmé&he start-ups which the Group has invested havenwnced
commercialisation and are expected to generatauevian 2014.

The Group will strategise its revenue into 2 maieams viz. heavy equipment and precision engingemd technologies.
The heavy equipment stream will comprise the maoffighore and oil and gas, construction equipmeiat faydraulic
services. The precision engineering and technatogieeam will comprise precision engineering, aatioom and
investments in new technologies.

The main drivers to strengthen and grow the heguypenent stream will be focused innovation and pmdevelopment,
productivity improvements, leadership developmemd anarket expansion. The main drivers to grow thecipion
engineering and technologies stream are the exgaasid strengthening of the existing infrastructith a strong pool
of specialist engineers and managers. This wéhgjthen our expertise in supporting the growthunfaxisting investments
in technologies and to embrace new technologidsatigasynergistic and possessing strong potertiiatsnay or may not
necessarily integrate into our core activities. ao¥s this direction, the Group has been fortuitoleing awarded “private
sector translator” status by a government agenchange of enterprise development in Singapore avitash grant of up
to S$4.5m. The grant is to assist the Group toget business, the first of its kind in Singaptwehe run as a commercial
entity for profit, to translate medical technolagyellectual properties from research institutiaomSingapore. A wholly-
owned subsidiary, iPtec Pte Ltd has been formedhiisrpurpose. Adding impetus to the drive, the Uraill consider
seed-funding of start-ups which possess stronghfiate and will consider exiting these investmdntsprofits when they
have realized their potentials.

Judicious Risk Management

Investments in new technologies carry high riskd ewards. The market for new technologies is galyegreen field
providing opportunities for exponential growth asnpared with established products. As such it lentihe Group’s
policy to invest in new technologies from its imtar cash reserves without external borrowings. Greup will consider
gearing for a new technology business only aftea# achieved commercialisation and is generagingrue.

The Group will fund the paid up capital of S$2miRfec Pte Ltd, our new intellectual property tratisin engineering
company from its internal cash reserves.

Revenue by Business Segments
The following is an analysis of the segmental rexen

Revenue by Business Segments Year ended Year ended

30 June 13 30 June 12
(S$ million) (S$ million)

Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery +22.6 42.11 34.35
Construction Equipment - 30.8 39.72 57.39
Precision Engineering & Automation +0.9 35.21 8.9
Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics +75 3.43 31

Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery

Following the huge oil rig orders placed in thet fesv years and being delivered, demand for offsh@ssels to support
their operations has resurged. Orders for our deméhinery had been strong offsetting delays inrsrétem oil and gas.
Orders for our oil and gas projects had been ddlagea result of our earlier problems in two prasiprojects which have
now been rectified and the projects successfulhydbd over. Our timely and successful delivery affost deep sea deck
machinery for water depth exceeding 500m has dfnengd our reputation in the industry. We are cmnft of
strengthening our positioning in the industry tingaore orders. Prospects for securing ordersif@ma gas projects are
strong.

Offshore structures for operations of remote operatehicles in sub-seas operations, in paralléi wéck machinery,
experienced increased demand. Such demand rerainstr

As at the end of the financial year just endedhese secured confirmed orders of S$37.0m in thénmaiffshore, oil and
gas and offshore structure segment to be deliviartite financial year 2014.
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Construction Equipment

Revenue for construction equipment decreased by8h&he current year as compared with the previ@as primarily
due to orders amounting to S$10.8m being held batke end of the financial year caused by custsnaslay. These
were shipped after the financial year.

The orders for concrete mixer in Thailand havegnilise, been very strong and these are expectedntinue into the
next financial year. China’s mixer business has logéte flat due to a slow-down in infrastructureselepments in China
and Hong Kong. The China operation, however, hasrheqrofitable. The Australian market slowed downsiderably
during the year and we do not expect any significanovery in the coming year. We expect margiogkés in the
Australian market.

Foundation equipment demand in South East Asidbes taking a breather. Several customers havpmeithemselves
in recent years. Demand for construction works irggg foundation equipment continue to be strong,particular

Singapore, due to the huge backlog in infrastre@ctunojects that are expected to last several yétsce, rental of
equipment has been on the rise and the rate afareris expected to be higher than new equipmiest Sde Group has
penetrated into Malaysia whose infrastructural tgyments are also growing. We expect to grow théalssan market.

Demand in Australia remains subdued.

Precision Engineering & Automation

The precision engineering sector has shown a marQif% increase in revenue over the previous yidas.is in spite of
the slow-down in the global economy leading to at@xtion of 2.2% in the global semi-conductor isisy and the
extended gestation of our start-up investments.

This segment achieves an average of 46% compoundgibgrowth in the last 5 years. With forecastahpound growth
in the global semi-conductor industry exceedingid%e next 5 years driven by growth in demandandiheld devices
such as smart phones and tablet computers, sigrec@fery are evident. Medical devices are foretasigually enjoy
good compound growth in the coming years. Ridinghengrowth of these sectors and the commercialisatf our start-
up investments, whose products are manufacturedubyprecision engineering sector, we are confiddrachieving

sustainable growth in our precision engineeringasec

Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics
This sector is made up of supply of hydraulic systiives and hydraulic services in support of cemegal core business
activities in hydraulic engineering. Variation g sector is not significant.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group generally prices its sales in foreigrrencies on forward rates. During the full year, kezlged our rates
accordingly to ensure our margins were maintaifiée. net loss attributable to foreign exchange duttie current year is
S$2.69m as compared with an exchange gain of S®0iri e previous year.

Accounting Standards AASB 139 obliges us to faiueaur outstanding foreign currency derivativethatrates ruling on
30 June 2013. The net loss of S$2.69m includedhtbeted unrealised loss in the valuation of themévdtives as at 30
June 2013 amounting to S$2.41m (2012: S$0.50m).

Financial Position
The group’s financial position has generally immdy

Classification Increase (+) / Decrease (-) As at 30 June 13  As at 30 June 12

S$ million S$ million S$ million
Net Assets + 3.87 488. 84.62
Net Working Capital + 2.46 44,95 AP
Cash in Hand and at Bank - 3.09 21.36 24.45

Gearing Ratios
The Group gearing ratio is 0% at the same ratiaHeryear ended 30 June 2012. Gearing ratio has drewed at by
dividing our net interest bearing debts over togglital.

Return Per Share
The Group’s earnings and net tangible assets pee siie as follows: -

Classification Decrease 2013 2012

Singapore Cents Singapore Cents Singapore Cents
Earnings per share -0.45 3.24 3.69

The weighted average shares used to compute lzaBiogs per share are 213,798,000 for this yeaRaf¢B76,00Ghares
for the previous year.

Classification Increase As at 30 June 13 As at 30 June 12

Singapore Cents Singapore Cents Singapore Cents
NTA per share + 0.83 35.05 34.22

-10 -
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Capital Expenditure
For the year ending 30 June 2014, the Group ptaimvést up to S$2.5m for prototyping, precisiod &sting equipment
and the setting up of our new wholly-owned subsjdiBtec Pte Ltd. Part of the costs is covered Qyaat.

Confirmed Orders
We have a total of S$56.0m (30 Jun 2012: S$51.5syanding confirmed orders in hand as at 30 JO&8.2A breakdown
of these outstanding confirmed orders is as follows

S$m
Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery 37.0
Construction Equipment 12.3
Precision Engineering & Automation 6.5
Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics D
Total _56.0

These outstanding orders are scheduled for delivettye financial year 2014. Prospects for on-gainders continue to
be robust.

The Precision Engineering Technology Cluster
Going forward into 2014, we aim to group the tedbgg cluster comprising our start-up investmentd #re precision
engineering and automation sector together undectflon Engineering & Technologies”.

A Strategic Catalyst

The Group’s success in translating its start-upshiologies into products that have now progressedmmercialisation
globally has earned it the award of a “private @etranslator” that comes with a cash grant ofawfg$4.5m for the first 3
years. This amount is to be disbursed based orGtbep’s achieving key performance milestones. A Nyhawned
subsidiary iPtec Pte Ltd (“iPtec”) has been forrteedarry out this activity and will be run as a goercial entity for profit.
It is the intention of the Group and the grantariRiec to achieve a global outreach.

iPtec is an acronym for intellectual property (“JRfanslation engineering centre. iPtec will foausmedical technology
translation for local research institutes in Singapn both the government and private sector aad extend to include
overseas IPs. iPtec will be the first company &tkind in Singapore to bridge an eco-system inntledical technology
landscape in Singapore. The company will invesh@latest state-of-the-art advanced prototypingmgent and testing
facilities and employ specialist engineers in emépt design, clinical trials, regulatory approvatel industrial design to
render a comprehensive suite of services to custofrem the IP’s proof of concept stage to comnadisation.

Seed Funding Potentials

Translated IPs are owned by customers who pahéotranslation services. However the Group willsider investing in

and co-own IPs that possess strong potentialsaptbvide seed-funding to start-ups with strongwmses. Seed-funded
investments may be disposed of for profit if thgotentials have been realized and they do not éostnategic fit with the

Group’s core business.

Technologies translated by iPtec may be seamlesspported by Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte’sLtd
manufacturing expertise as it has done so for tloei®s various start-up investments.

Progress on Start-Up Investments

The Group’s various start-ups possess disruptieleni@ogies. The nature of the technologies invdyitdkes a longer
phased gestation period. The most encouraging signthat each of the technologies invested has aeeepted by the
relevant end users as disruptive. As the technedogie validated at various phases for proof afevéd the customers,
gradual adoption is gaining pace. Once customers fdly adopted the technologies, exponentialsale expected to
break-out.

Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd (Orion)

Orion’s commercial Thermal Bonder for fine pitchpfithips has been accepted by industry. We aradinglthe sale of
significant batch orders with the first batch afiits aimed to be shipped within the first hal26fl4 subject to no delay
in customer’s expansion plans. The expanding gldealand for hand-held devices and tablet computi#irgse fine pitch
flip chips as opposed to conventional chips. Thiexpected to accelerate the process for chip raanuérs to retool into
manufacturing and packaging fine pitch flip chipgie pitch flip chips are high power computing chthat meet present
days’ requirement for small but powerful chips ifeereased multi-functional computing needs in tiduitry.

Orion is emerging from its gestation to be revegeeerating.

Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd (Biobot)

The commercial version of the Mona Lisa iSR’obatgseal robot for prostate biopsy was launched i AUA 2013, a
conference of the American Urology Association &an®iego in May 2013. The surgical robot was wetleived and we
are finalising partnerships with two university pitals to set up centers of excellence in Eurogkd8A. One of these
will be based in Germany and the other one in NenkCity. We aim to have these centers set up b&esember 2013.
The centers of excellence will facilitate trainiofjcustomers in the region on the use of our safgmbot and facilitate
further development on the applications of our tpbwluding therapy.
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The commercial unit has undergone various techimigatovements in accuracy, enhanced safety andhergie features
facilitating one-man operation and local anaesthe§pproval from the Food and Drug Administrati&iD@) in USA for

the updated unit has been received. We expectéivee CE Mark (Eurozone) in the next 2 months. Upsléd regulatory
approval in Australia and Taiwan have been filece Jlan to file for regulatory approval in China hetfirst half of
calendar year 2014.

Biobot aims to realise its first sales of the rabahe first half of the next financial year.

Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd (Curiox)

Curiox’s DropArray technology has achieved brealotiygh acceptance by 10 of the top 25 pharmacewticapanies in
the USA and Europe. The DropArray technology, whapglication research findings were published inot®l” a

prestigious journal of the American Society of Heéofzgy in December 2012, is now well accepted adehding unique
technology for high throughput screening in drugcdivery processes that use both suspension andeatibells in the
preparation of complex assays.

The DropArray technology which employs wall-lescraplates has proven to achieve a higher retemi@uspension
cells during washing and uses less disease maakdrseagents which are expensive compounds. Thadkgy is now
at a critical stage of validation by various phacmaical companies applying it in their respectiveprietary assays in
developing new drugs. Significant progress has teneved in us adapting our features to suit thegds. We are
confident that our progress towards full adopti®gaining pace. Although their standards are strihgmaking the level
of entry high, we are hopeful of industry’s adoptiwithin the next 12 months. A full adoption of aechnology will
potentially escalate from its current validatiorttwhigh end complex assays to simpler assays widethie scope of
applications across the industry.

In the interim, revenue from applications in sinm@ssays is being generated. This is expectedkoupi.

Prospects
The year just ended has been volatile. Our ful'ggasults have been impacted by such volatility.

The global recovery is expected to remain fragiih wncertainties continuing to prevail. The Gralparts its course on
the basis that these global uncertainties whethismg from economic imbalances or political chamgell always
underscore the global economic landscape. As shielGroup has been positioning itself to trangtitiflection point in
its growth path, in order to create a platformdostainable growth.

Prospects for the Group in 2014 remain strong.Glaip is confident of sustainable growth into thiife.

Subsequent Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Redemption of redeemable loans stocks

On 1 July 2013, 3,016,772 redeemable loan stocksabot Surgical Pte Ltd (“Biobot”) held by Zicom Hbhgs Pte Ltd
has been fully redeemed by Biobot via the issue efdinary share fully paid for every loan stockchéhs a result, the
Group equity interest in Biobot was adjusted to 94..8

Incorporation of iPtec Pte Ltd
On 2 July 2013, Sys-Mac Automation EngineeringlRteincorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, iPtée Btd, which
will be principally engaged in medical technologgrislation services.

Environmental Regulations
The group is subject to environmental regulationden State and Federal legislations. The groupsheit/ironmental
licences for its manufacturing site in Brisbane.digmificant material environmental incidents ocedrduring the year.

Meetings of directors
The number of meetings of the company’s board ofatiors and of each board committee held sincdasteAnnual
General Meeting, and the numbers of meetings attbbgt each director were:

Meetings of Committees

Full meetings of Audit Nomination &

directors Remuneration
A B A B A B

Giok Lak Sim 4 4 2 2 1 1
Kok Hwee Sim 4 4 2 2 - -
Yian Poh Lim 4 4 2 2 1 1
Frank Leong Yee Yew 4 4 2 2 1 1
lan R Millard 4 4 2 2 - -
Sze Shaw Pao 4 4 2 2 - -
Kok Yew Sim 3 4 2 2 - -

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the time theaoeheld office or was a member of the committegrdy the year
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Insurance or indemnification of officers
During the financial year, Zicom Group Limited paigoremium of A$8,527 to insure against liabilitéshe directors and
officers of the reporting entity.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that mayrweirred in defending civil or criminal proceedintpat may be brought
against directors or officers in their capacitisoéficers of the reporting entity.

The policy also provides for certain statutory firiecurred by the reporting entity or officers, grdtection for claims
made alleging a breach of professional duty arisumgof an act, error or omission of the officefste reporting entity.

Retirement, election and continuation in office oflirectors
Mr Y P Lim retires by rotation and being eligibtefers himself for re-election.

Directors’ relevant interests in Zicom Group Limited

In accordance with S300(11) of tBerporations Act 2001the relevant interests of the Messrs G L Sim&miSze in the
shares and options of Zicom Group Limited as atitite of this report are unchanged to those diedlasthin the financial
statements as at 30 June 2013.

Due to the expiry of certain share options subseifoghe financial year just ended, the shareoogtheld by the following
directors at the date of this report are:

Mr K H Sim 280,000
MrY P Lim -
Mr F Leong -
Mr I R Millard -
Mr K'Y Sim 280,000

There has been no change to the relevant intarestsres of Zicom Group Limited held by these aies between the
reporting date and the date of this report.

Remuneration report (Audited)

This remuneration report outlines the director erecutive remuneration arrangements of the Compaahyhee Group in
accordance with the requirements of @@porations Act 200and its Regulations. This information has beentaddis
required by section 308(3C) of the Act.

Key management personnel (KMP) of the Group arindéfas those persons having authority and redpibtysifor
planning, directing and controlling the major aitidés of the Group, directly or indirectly, includj any director (whether
executive or otherwise) of the Group.

The remuneration report is set out under the fallgwnain headings:

A Principles used to determine the nature and atmiuremuneration
B Service Agreements

C Details of remuneration

A Principles used to determine the nature and amowofitemuneration

A combined Nomination and Remuneration Committeeble@s formed. The members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprise of Mr Y P Lim as @han with Mr Frank Leong and Mr G L Sim as
members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committelealpproved the Service Agreement of the group
managing director, Mr G L Sim and this was subsatiyeatified by the full board.

The key principle of Zicom Group Limited’s remunioa policy is to ensure remuneration is set atlethat
will attract, motivate, reward and retain personoeimprove business results, having regard toctmepany’s
financial performance and financial position.

Non-executive directors

Remuneration of non-executive directors is deterthimg the directors within the maximum amount apptbv
by the shareholders. Each non-executive direcitgives a base fee of A$25,000 for being a direcfdhe
Group. An additional fee of A$2,000 is also pad éach Board Committee of which a non-executiveatar
sits and A$5,000 if the director is a Chair of a Bb@ommittee. The payment of additional fees fovisgron
committees recognises the additional time commitraed responsibilities of the non-executive diresteho
serve on one or more sub committees. Thereadsassttendance fee of A$1,000 for each meetiegaéd by
the non-executive director.

Non-executive directors are eligible to participetehe Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan (“ZB30
The Board considers that there should be an apptepmix of remuneration comprising cash and seearfor
all Directors to link the remuneration of the Dit@s to the financial performance of the Company tanalign
the interests of shareholders and all Directors.
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The board recommends that total directors’ feesifor-executive directors for the financial yeariagd80 June
2014 be fixed at a maximum sum of A$150,000 (S¥I@D), at the same level as the previous year.

Key management personnel — executive directorsanitr executives

All remuneration paid to executive directors andigeexecutives comprises of the following compdsen
. Base pay and benefits;

. Short term incentives;

. Other remuneration such as superannuation,

. Participation in the Zicom Employee Share and OpEtan.

The company's policy does not allow transactiongchvifimit the economic risk in participating in uested
entitlements under equity-based remuneration scheme

Base pay

The level of base pay is set so as to provide @l lgvremuneration which is appropriate to the posiand is
competitive in the market. The remuneration ofdkecutive directors is reviewed annually by thardand the
remuneration of senior executives is reviewed altyyoaon promotion by the managing director(s).

Benefits
Senior executives receive benefits including heiaklirance, disability insurance and car allowances

Short term incentives

The objective of short term incentives is to rewtre senior executives of the group with perforneanonus
tied to a minimum profit threshold of the group qamies. Such bonuses are paid within 90 days thfiéeyear
end and completion of audit. The minimum profieghold is the lower of $500,000 or 15% of totareolder
funds as at the reporting date.

B Service Agreements

Group Managing Director

The group managing director, Mr G L Sim is direaiyployed by Zicom Holdings Private Limited (“ZHBL”
and has renewed his service agreement with ZHPhrfother 5 years with effect from 1 July 2011. §heup
and Mr Sim are required to give each other at |[@asbnths’ notice in the termination of the senacgeement.
Under the terms of his service agreement, Mr Sinticaes to be appointed as the Zicom Group Lim{t2GL")
Group Managing Director and Chairman as well asgkecutive Chairman of all the operating subsidsarie

Mr Sim is entitled to an annual review of his mdntkalary if the company’s results exceed 15% retm
shareholders’ funds. Mr Sim has frozen his monshbary since 2007. Mr Sim will continue to draw thonthly
salary at the 2007 level for the next 5 years fioduly 2011 and waive all salary increments. Afrarh this, all
other benefits, terms and conditions in his serageement remain unchanged.

Mr Sim is paid a monthly salary and a car allowamde Sim is entitled to a performance bonus noteexiing
5% of the pre-tax consolidated profits of ZHPL ugarhieving agreed minimum profit targets, being dhéy
criterion for his entitlement. ZHPL's profits exaaed the target for the financial year just endetivaill be paid

a bonus accordingly. Mr Sim has decided with tloenifhation & Remuneration Committee that he shall only
receive 3.5% of pre-tax consolidated profits of ZHE his performance bonus instead of his fulltkmtient at
5% so as to allocate the balance of his entitleteergward other outstanding senior executives arkmtherwise
not entitled to profit sharing contractually. Acdimgly, this 3.5% of pre-tax consolidated profiti be deemed

to be 100% of his entitlement for the current ficiahyear. Mr Sim has likewise, in previous yedosgone part

of his bonus.

Mr Sim is entitled to convert part of this perfommea bonus up to no more than 50% of the amountybayiato
shares of ZGL at the average of the closing piééise last 5 trading days before the end of thevest financial
year. However, such entitlement must be exeraigddn 7 working days after the financial year erfeor the
current financial year, Mr Sim did not elect to wert any part of his performance bonus into ZGLreba

Mr Sim is not paid any salary or fees by ZGL, Ce&agtralia Limited (“CAL”) or any other group compasi
In the event CAL achieves the minimum pre-tax psofilr Sim will be paid a bonus not exceeding 5% AL ’s
profits. During the year just ended, Mr Sim was paitl any bonus by CAL as the profit target wasantiieved.

Senior Executives (directors of group companies)

Senior executives in key decision making are engdaynder rolling contracts. The company and tiseséor
executives are required to give each other 6 momibsice to terminate the service contracts. Theimge
executives are entitled to a monthly salary andraatlowance. Each year, each of the subsidiarypenies,
allocates 10% of their pre-tax profits upon achmevagreed minimum profit targets, being the onitedon for
allocation of bonus to its eligible executives,aa%onus pool”. The maximum entitlement cappeddiigible
executives ranges from 2.5% to 5% of the pre-taofifsr Each year, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee will decide the proportion payable to eafcthese eligible executives based on the numbeligible
executives entitled to the pool and any recomratod of the Managementto reward any outstandenior
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executives who are otherwise not eligible contraltyuto be specially rewarded. The decisions miagli¢he
Committee are deemed to be 100% of their entitlerioeribe respective eligible executive for the finml year.

These senior executives are also entitled to copaet of their performance bonus, up to no moan th0% of
the amount payable, into shares in ZGL at the ge=odi the closing prices of the last 5 trading dag®re the
end of the relevant financial year. However, setittement must be exercised within 7 working dafger the
financial year end. For the year just ended, rafrtbe executives exercised the option to convart of their
performance bonus into ZGL shares.

Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan
Options are granted under the Zicom Employee SaadeOption Plan (“ZESOP”) which was approved by
shareholders on 23 November 2006.

A person is eligible to participate in ZESOP if bieshe is a director or an employee of a group @myp
Approved share options are allocated to each gtoupany based on its profit contribution to the @réor the
past 3 years. These options are then granted tdogegs based on individual performance and those wi
potentials in that group company. This initiatisleeagthens the Group’s position to retain and etttiilent so as
to expand and grow to improve the Group’s perforteaand enhance shareholders’ value.

The board may at any time make invitations to klgiemployees to participate in the ZESOP. Thetation
will specify the total number of options each dligi employee may acquire, the exercise price, geaind
exercise conditions. All options shall lapse upoa éxpiry of the exercise period as determinechbybbard or
10 years after grant of the option whichever idiear

If an eligible participant ceases to be employediny member of the group his or her options shaké¢. In the
event an eligible participant, who, by reason datbeor physical or mental incapacity or such oteasons as
the Board may approve, ceases to be an eligibleipant before the participant has exercised ateg options
under ZESOP, then those options shall continuetecaipable of being exercised in accordance withutes.

Options granted under ZESOP carry no voting rightsntitiement to dividends.
During the current financial year, 2,610,000 shirtons were granted to deserving employees amdtdis to
acquire the ZGL shares at A$0.17 per share. Thp#ens are valid for 3 years, 50% of these optiares

exercisable 12 months from the date of grant aademaining are exercisable 24 months from the afageant.

Options are granted at no cost to employees. \Ekertised, each option is convertible into oneradi share
which shall be credited as fully paid up and ragiadly with all other fully paid ordinary share b

During the financial year, employees have exerciggiibns to acquire 517,500 fully paid ordinary reélsain
Zicom Group Limited at a weighted average exemnpigee of A$0.18 per share. 1,277,500 options expituring
the financial year.

At the date of this report, there were 6,760,008sued ordinary shares under options (7,035,08@&aeporting
date).

Company Performance

The table below shows the performance of the Gfoughe past 5 financial years:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Earnings per share (Australian cents) 2.56 2.83 55.1 4.02 4.47
Dividend per share (Australian cents) 1.00 1.00 01.0 0.85 0.60
Closing share price (Australian cents) 23.( 15.0 050 12.5 10.0
Net tangible asset per share (Australian cents) 9629 26.49 24.73 23.53 20.84

C Details of remuneration (audited)

Details of the remuneration to the directors ardkity management personnel of Zicom Group Limitedtfe years ended
30 June 2013 and 2012 are set out in the followabtes. All performance related bonus and shasedaayment listed
in the table were 100% vested for both financiarge
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Post
2013 Short Term Employee Benefits Engg%mem Share-Based Payments
Other Short- Performance
Cash Salary Short Term  Non-Monetary  Term Employee Bonus Paid in Share
Name and Fees Cash Benefits Benefits Superannuation Share: option: Total
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
Non-executive Directors
Y P Lim 45,590 _ _ _ _ _ 478 46,068
F Leong 41,791 _ _ _ _ _ 478 42,269
I R Millard 43,058 _ _ _ _ _ 478 43,536
SPSze 36,726 _ _ _ _ _ 31 36,757
Sub-total non-executive directors 167,165 — — — — — 1,465 168,630
Executive Directors
G L Sim - Chairman 432,000 287,250 _ 24,000 5,525 _ - 748,775
KH Sim 144,674 120,000 _ 12,000 13,600 _ 3,729 294,003
K'Y Sim (alternate to K H Sim) 158,646 132,500 _ 44,400 13,600 _ 3,729 352,875
Sub-total executive directors 735,320 539,750 — 80,400 32,725 — 7,458 1,395,653
Other key management personnel
G H Teol 216,000 167,857 _ 60,000 8,775 _ 3,327 455,959
J Koon Sin® 180,135 144,500 _ 18,000 11,700 _ - 354,335
JL Sin® 215,211 183,360 _ 21,600 8,775 _ 3,327 432,273
H S Tang® 176,588 137,520 _ 14,400 5,900 _ 3,327 337,735
Sub-total other key management personnel 787,934 633,237 _ 114,000 35,150 _ 9,981 1,580,302
Grand total 1,690,419 1,172,987 _ 194,400 67,875 - 18,904 3,144,585

(1) G H Teoh is the managing director of Foundationo&&ges Engineering Pte Ltd

(2) J Koon Sim is the President of Sys-Mac Automatiogifeering Pte Ltd

(3) J L Sim is the joint managing director of Zicom Btd
(4) H S Tang is the joint managing director of Zicore Ptd
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Post
2012 Short Term Employee Benefits Engﬂ?}é';ri‘tent Share-Based Payments
Other Short- Performance  Share %
Cash Salary  Short Term  Non-Monetary  Term Employee Bonus Paid in  Options Performance
Name and Fees Cash Benefits Benefite Superannuation Share: Total Relate
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ %

Non-executive Directors
Y P Lim 48,215 _ _ _ _ _ 3,218 51,433 _
F Leong 44,305 _ _ _ _ _ 3,218 47,523 _
I R Millard 45,609 _ _ _ _ _ 3,218 48,827 _
S P Sze 39,093 _ _ _ _ _ 1,908 41,001 _
Sub-total non-executive directors 177,222 — — — — — 11,562 188,784 —
Executive Directors
G L Sim - Chairman 432,000 175,000 _ 24,000 5,307 175,000 - 811,307 43.1
KH Sim 120,186 71,500 _ 12,000 13,130 38,500 12,733 268,049 41.0
K'Y Sim (alternate to K H Sim) 165,172 159,375 _ 44,362 9,522 53,125 12,733 444,289 47.8
Sub-total executive directors 717,358 405,875 _ 80,362 27,959 266,625 25,466 1,523,645
Other key management personnel
G H Teol 216,000 286,303 _ 60,000 6,331 - 9,868 578,502 49.5
J Koon Sin® 157,614 200,351 _ 18,000 7,162 - - 383,127 52.3
JL Sin® 216,907 80,000 _ 21,600 7,367 - 9,342 335,216 23.9
H S Tang® 180,187 60,000 _ 20,400 5,310 - 9,605 275,502 21.8
Sub-total other key management personnel 770,708 626,654 _ 120,000 26,170 - 28,815 1,572,347
Grand total 1,665,288 1,032,529 _ 200,362 54,129 266,625 65,843 3,284,776

(1) G H Teoh is the managing director of Foundafissociates Engineering Pte Ltd

(2) J Koon Sim is the president of Sys-Mac Autoorattngineering Pte Ltd

(3) J L Sim is the joint managing director of Zicétte Ltd
(4) H S Tang is the joint managing director of ZicBte Ltd
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Details of share options to key management persorine
The following options were granted to the followikey management personnel during the year endddr3®2013.

2013 No of Grant Fair value Exercise Expiry First Last exercise
options date per option at  price per date exercise date
granted grant date option date

Directors

K HSim 40,000 15 Nov 12 A$0.09 A$0.17 14/11/201 15/11/2013 14/11/2015

40,000 15Novi12  A$0.10 A$0.17  14/11/2015 15/11/2014  14/11/2015

KY Sim 40,000 15Novi12  A$0.09 A$0.17  14/11/2015 15/11/2013  14/11/2015

40,000 15Novi12  A$0.10 A$0.17  14/11/2015 15/11/2014  14/11/2015
Executives
JL Sim 40,000 1Sep12 A$0.09 A$0.17  31/08/2015  01/09/2013 31/08/2015
40,000 1Sep12 A$0.10 A$0.17 31/08/2015 (01/09/2014 31/08/2015
H S Tang 40,000 1Sep12 A$0.09 A$0.17  31/08/2015 01/09/2013 31/08/2015
40,000 1 Sep 12 A$0.10 A$0.17 31/08/2015 01/09/2014 31/08/2015
G H Teoh 40,000 1Sep12 A$0.09 A$0.17  31/08/2015 01/09/2013 31/08/2015
40,000 1 Sep 12 A$0.10 A$0.17 31/08/2015 01/09/2014 31/08/2015

Options granted to, vested and exercised by keyagement personnel during the year are as follows:

<+—— No of Options———» <+—— Value of Optiors—» Remuneration
S$ consisting of
options for the year
Granted Exercised Expired Granted Exercised Expired (%)
Independent
Directors
Y P Lim - 50,000 - - 7,223 - 1.0
F Leong - 50,000 - - 7,223 - 11
I R Millard - 50,000 - - 7,223 - 11
S P Sze - - - - - - 0.1
Executive Directors
G L Sim - - - - - - -
K H Sim 80,000 - - 8,696 - - 1.3
K'Y Sim 80,000 - - 8,696 - - 11
Executives
G H Teoh 80,000 - - 8,757 - - 0.7
J Koon Sim - - - - - - -
JL Sim 80,000 - 200,000 8,757 - 20,694 0.8
H S Tang 80,000 - 100,000 8,757 - 10,347 1.0
400,000 150,000 300,000 43,663 21,669 041,

For details on the valuation of options, includingdels and assumptions used, please refer to Bote 2
There were no alterations to the terms and comditaf options granted as remuneration since thairtglate.

Legal Proceedings

No person has applied for leave of Court to bringcpedings on behalf of the consolidated entityoantervene in any
proceedings to which the consolidated entity isrypfor the purpose of taking responsibility omalé of the consolidated
entity for all or any part of those proceedings.

Non-Audit Services

There were no non-audit services provided by thigé&auditor and related practices of the engitilitor, Ernst & Young,
during the year.
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Auditor's Independence Declaration
A copy of the auditor’s signed independence detitanas required under Section 307C of Gwrporations Act 2001s
attached to this report.

Rounding of Amounts

The company is an entity to which the Class Ordét@Bapplies and accordingly, amounts in the fir@rstatements and
directors’ report have been rounded to the ne&$®%1000 unless otherwise stated.

This report was made in accordance with a resaluifache board of directors.

GL Sim
Chairman/Managing Director
23 September 2013
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Zicom Group
Limited
In relation to our audit of the financial report of Zicom Group Limited for the financial year ended 30

June 2013, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Ernst & Youn

Ric Roach
Partner
23 September 2013

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Introduction

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Corffaovernance of Zicom Group Limited and its cdfgrbentities
(referred to in this document as “the Company”). Threctors are focused on fulfilling their respdibiies individually
and as a Board to all of the Company’s stakeholddtis. involves recognition of and a need to adopigiples of good
corporate governance having regard to the ASX Catpdgovernance Council (CGC) published guidelinesedlsas its
corporate governance principles and recommendations

The Company has reviewed its Corporate Governanceeguoes over the past year to ensure compliande thvé
principles of good corporate governance.

At the end of this Corporate Governance Statenmemetis a table detailing the recommendations witich the Company
does not strictly comply.

A description of the Company'’s practices in compdywith the principles is set out below.

Principle 1: Laying Solid Foundations for Managementand Oversight
The role of the Board is to lead and oversee theagement and direction of the Company and its cdatt@ntities.

After appropriate consultation with executive magragnt the Board:

- defines and sets the business objectives. It subsdy monitors performance and achievement of the
Company'’s objectives;

- oversees the reporting on matters of compliancle @atporate policies and laws, takes responsilityrisk
management processes and reviews executive manaigehtkee Company;

- monitors and approves business plans, financidpeance and budgets, and available resources aja m
capital expenditure initiatives of the Company;

- maintains liaison with the Company’s auditor; and

- reports to Shareholders.

Senior Executives and Executive Directors havelgif appointments or service contracts descrithiey terms of office,
duties, rights and responsibilities.

The performance of the board and key executivesviswed regularly against both measureable anlitafive indicators.
The performance criteria against which directodexecutives are assessed are aligned with thecislaand non-financial
objectives of Zicom Group Limited. Directors whgserformance is consistently unsatisfactory magdiesd to retire.

Principle 2: Structure the Board to Add Value

The recommendations of the Corporate Governancediane that the composition of the Board be deteettiso as to
provide the Company with a broad base of industngjriess, technical, administrative and corporateasid experience
considered necessary to represent Shareholdefaléihthe business objectives of the Company.

The recommendations of best practice are that #jerity of the directors and in particular the ¢parson should be
independent. An independent director is one who:

- does not hold an executive position;

- is not a substantial shareholder of the Companynoofficer of, or otherwise associated directly with
substantial shareholder of the Company;

- has not within the last three years been emplogeshi executive capacity by the Company or othermgrou
member, or been a director after ceasing to hojdsanh employment;

- is not a principal of a significant professionaVisér or a significant consultant of the Compangthier group
member, or an employee materially associated \witservice provided;

- is not a significant supplier or customer of the @any or other group member, or an officer of, treotvise
associated directly or indirectly with a signifitaupplier or customer;

- has no significant contractual relationship with ompany or other group member other than as &tbDire
of the Company; and

- is free from any interest and any business or atationship which could, or could reasonably becpived
to, materially interfere with the Director’s abylito act in the best interests of the Company.

Individual board members do not fulfil all of thesgteria but the overall profile of the Board isnsidered the most
appropriate for the activities of the Company.

Details of the members of the Board, their expegerspertise, qualifications, term of office andépendent status are
included in the “Board of Directors” section withtime annual report.

-21 -



Zicom Group Limited

Corporate Governance Statement

Materiality thresholds in determining the indepemzkof non-executive directors are:
- A relationship that accounts for more than 10%hefDirector’s gross income (other than directogssf paid
by the company).
- Where the relationship is with a firm, company ofity, in respect of which the Director (or any @sste)
has more than a 20% shareholding if a private compa 2% if a listed company.

Mr G L Sim was appointed Managing Director of Zic@roup Limited commencing 1 July 2006, and Chairwizicom

Group Limited with effect from 23 November 2006. ide major shareholder in Zicom Group Limited tigb his interest
in his family company, SNS Holdings Pte Ltd. Prexsly Mr Sim had been the major shareholder (thrdsiyi$ Holdings
Pte Ltd) of Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd (“ZHPL"). Mr 8i has been the Managing Director of ZHPL since g the
company and was appointed the Chairman of ZHPL oAubust 2007, in line with his position as the Grvathairman.
The Board has determined that Mr Sim is, and wasnependent.

Mr Frank Leong has no relationships or interesas would affect his role as an independent director
Mr Y P Lim has no relationships or interests thatld affect his role as an independent director.
Mr lan R Millard has no relationships or interestattwould affect his role as an independent directo
Mr S P Sze has no relationships or interests toatdvaffect his role as an independent director.
Mr K H Sim is an Executive Director and therefaseconsidered by the Board to be not independent.

Mr K'Y Sim is an alternate director of Mr K H Simdatherefore is considered by the Board to be rdgpendent.

Term of Office
The Company’s Constitution specifies that at the ahganeral meeting in every year, one third ofDiirectors for the
time being but not exceeding one-third (with theemtion of the Managing Director) must retire froffice by rotation.

Independent Professional Advice
Directors and Board Committees have the right, imeation with their duties and responsibilities aseftors, to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’'sresga Prior written approval of the Chairman is negly and this
will not be unreasonably withheld.

Board Committees
The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Conengitid an Audit Committee, the details of which @teosit
below:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a cnatbhcommittee, comprising of the following members:
¢ MrY P Lim (Chairman)
e« MrGLSim
¢ Mr Frank Leong

The Committee has the responsibility for recruitmant evaluation of Board Members. In addition tbenmittee
formulates the remuneration policies for the BoaehMers and Managing Director of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of the following mearsd
¢ Mr lan Millard (Chairman)
¢« Mr Frank Leong
e MrYPLim

The Audit Committee operates in accordance withaater. The main responsibilities of the Audit Coittee are to:

¢ Review, assess and approve the annual report, thgelaa financial report and all other financiafarmation
published by the Company or released to the market.

* Review the effectiveness of the Group’s internaltcdrenvironment, including effectiveness and ééficy of
operations, reliability of financial reporting andmpliance with applicable laws and regulations.

¢ Oversee the effective operation of the risk managgrmtamework.

o Recommend the appointment, removal and remunerafitme external Auditor, and review the terms dith
engagement, the scope and quality of their auditzasess their performance.

«  Consider the independence and competence of thenakfeuditor on an ongoing basis.

* Review and monitor related party transactions asdsastheir propriety.

« Report on matters relevant to the committee’s roter@sponsibilities.
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The Board and the Company Secretaries

The Company Secretaries are accountable to the Boatdhe appointment or removal of the Companyeawr is a
matter of the Board as a whole.

Each Director is entitled to access the advicesamdices of the Company Secretary.

Principle 3: Promote Ethical and Responsible DecisireMaking

Code of Conduct

Directors, officers, employees and consultanth®@ompany are required to observe high standartietadviour and
business ethics on behalf of the Company and theeyeguired to maintain a reputation of integritytbe part of both the
Company and themselves. The Company does not confthatr otherwise engage any person or party wheensiders
integrity may be compromised.

Directors are required to disclose to the Boardaabu potential conflicts of interest that may oight reasonably be
thought to exist between the interests of the threar the interests of any other party in so faitaffects the activities of
the Company. When applicable, directors are tinaatcordance with th@orporations Actf a conflict cannot be removed
or it persists. Directors would be restricted frimking part in the decision making process or disimns where that conflict
does arise.

Directors are required to make disclosure of aryestirading. The key principles of the Share TrgdPolicy are that
Directors and officers are prohibited to trade wiiil possession of unpublished price sensitivainéion and during the
following closed periods:

e The period between 1 January and the release @dhgany’s Half Year results to the Stock Exchange

¢ The period between 1 July and the release of thep@owis Full Year results to the Stock Exchange

¢ The twenty-four hours following an announcemenpriée sensitive information on the Stock Exchange

e Other periods as may be imposed by the Company hiea sensitive, non-public information may exist

relation to a matter

Price sensitive information is information thatemsonable person would expect to have a matefadtefn the price or
value of the company shares. The undertaking oftating in shares must be notified to the Comp&agretary who
makes disclosure to the ASX.

Diversity Policy

The Company does not have a written diversity polimwever, the Company recognises the importandeiéfitting

from all available talent regardless of gender,, aglnicity and cultural background. The Compangnmtes an
environment conducive to the appointment of weklldied employees, senior management and boardidaied so that
there is appropriate diversity to maximise the eg@iment of corporate goals.

The Company has employees including executives fdiversified cultural background and nationalitiascls as
Australians, Bangladeshis, Chinese, Indians, IndanssFilipinos, Malaysians, Myanmar, New Zealandgirsgaporeans
and Thais. In addition, approximately 20% of therpany’s workforce is made up of female employees.

Principal 4: Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting
As stated above the Company’s Audit Committee is nugdef independent directors.

To ensure the integrity of the Company’s financ&darts, the managing director and the Group Fisdu@bntroller are

required to declare annually, in writing to the ftbahat the financial records of the Company fer thspective financial
year have been properly maintained, the Compames€ial reports comply with accounting standamis present a true
and fair view of the Company’s financial conditiamdeoperational results.

Each member of the Board has access to the ext&udibr and the Auditor has access to each Boardlmeem

Principal 5: Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure

The Joint Company Secretaries are persons resperigibbverseeing and co-ordinating disclosure fdrimation to the
ASX as well as communication with the ASX. Thisahxes compliance with the continuous disclosuraliregnents of
the Listing Rules.

Principal 6: Respect the Rights of Shareholders
Pursuant to Principle 6, the Board's objective ipimmote effective communication with its shareleotdat all times.

Zicom Group Limited is committed to:
- Ensuring that shareholders and financial markeg¢spmovided with full and timely information aboutet
Company'’s activities in a balanced and understaedabl
- Complying with continuous disclosure obligations teamed in the ASX listing rules and tlmrporations Act
in Australia
- Communicate effectively with its shareholders andinmgit easier for shareholders to communicate it
Company
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To promote effective communication with sharehaddand encourage effective participation at generaktings,
information is communicated to shareholders:

- Through the release of information to the markattiie ASX

- Through the distribution of annual report and Netix¢ Annual General Meeting

- Through shareholder meetings and investor relapoesentations

- Through letters and other forms of communicatioinsadly with shareholders when deemed necessary
- Hosting all of the above on the Company websitgvatv.zicomgroup.com

The external auditors are required to attend thauah General Meeting and are available to answgrsaareholder
guestions about the conduct of the audit preparatiche audit report.

Principle 7: Recognise and Manage Risk

The Board is conscious of the need to continuallintam systems of risk management and controlsderdto create long-
term shareholders value. In recognition of thig board determines the Company’s risk profile @ankesponsible for
overseeing and approving risk management strategjyalicies and internal controls. The Companyihgdace policies

and procedures for risk management which coversareduding workplace health and safety, controkey resources,
manufacturing, financial and other critical busmesocesses. The operational risks are managedrbigr management
level and escalated to the board for direction wtiee issue is exceptional, non-recurring or maxeleamaterial financial

or operational impact on the Company.

In accordance with Section 295A of ti@orporations Act the Group Managing Director (Chief Executive QOdfic
equivalent) and the Group Financial Controller (Cligfancial Officer equivalent) have provided a terit statement to
the board that:

- The view provided on the Company’s financial reperfounded on a sound system of risk managemeht an
internal compliance and control which implements Board’s policies; and

- The Company’s risk management and internal compdiagned control system is operating efficiently and
effectively in all material respects.

The board notes that due to its nature, such iak@wontrol assurance can only be reasonable réttharabsolute as the
inherent limitations in internal controls cannotdesigned to detect all weaknesses in control poes.

Principle 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly
As stated above, a Nomination and Remuneration Ctrertias been established by the board.

Details of the remuneration for Directors and Kegidgement Personnel can be found in the DirectqusrReithin the
Annual Report.

The Group Managing Director and Group ExecutiveeBltior receive performance based remuneration. ditian, the
Group Managing Director has renewed his serviceeagent with the Group for a term of another 5 yéansm 1 July
2011. The other Directors do not receive any peréorce based remuneration and do not have convibtthe Company
that give them any form of certain tenure. Onegdtiuf theDirectors retire annually and are free to seekleetion by
Shareholders.

Each member of the Board has committed to spendiffigient time to enable them to carry out theitids as a Director
of the Company.

A maximum amount of remuneration for non-execufdiectors is fixed by Shareholders in general nmgeéind can be
varied in the same manner. In determining the atlon (if any) the Board must take account of theetdemands on the
Directors together with such factors as fees pamther corporate directors and to the responsésilundertaken by them.

The Directors with the exception of Mr G L Sim weagented options after it was approved by the $twdders in an
Extraordinary General Meeting on 28 August 2008e Board considers that there should be an apprepmat of
remuneration comprising cash and securities foDakctors to link the remuneration of the Direstdo the financial
performance of the Company. The Directors constrisrremuneration policy to be a sensible and baldmolicy which
aligns the interests of shareholders and all Darsct The hedging policy regarding unvested optismietailed within the
Directors’ Report.
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Departures from the Recommendations of the ASX Comprate Governance Council.

Recommendation

Departure from Recommendation

Explanation for Departre

D

Number

1.1 There is no formalisation of the Throughout the reporting period the Board consisfealmajority of
separation of functions between the | non-executive Directors. Practices followed areststent with the
Board and Management. Principle.

1.2and 2.5 There is no written process for The Nomination and Remuneration Committee monitcsiews
performance evaluation of the Board, | and discusses the performance of the Board andxXexnutves and
committees, individual Directors and | implements changes where necessary.
key executives.

2.2 The Chair is not an independent The Chairperson and Managing Director positionshesle by the
director. same non-independent director. The Board has ctzodieactor who

has significant experience in the business wholeall the Company
in the best interests of the shareholders.

2.3 The Chair and Managing Director The Board has agreed on the responsibilities anididlivbetween
positions are held by the same non- | Chairman and Managing Director.
independent director.

3.3 There is no written Diversity Policy andAlthough there are no written policies and measieeabjectives in
there are no established measureable place, practices followed are consistent with thiediple.
objectives for achieving gender
diversity.

5.1 There are no written policies and Although there are no written policies in places thsponsibility for
procedures designed to ensure compliance with the ASX Listing Rules is handledthg Board, in
compliance with ASX Listing Rule conjunction with the Company Secretaries.
disclosure requirements.

6.1 The Company has no formally designed@he Board is conscious of the need to keep Sharetsodothd markets
or disclosed communication strategy | advised. The procedures adopted within the Compathough not
with Shareholders. written, are weighted towards informing Sharehaderd markets.

7.1and 7.2 There has been no written Given the nature and size of the Company, its basiirgerests an

implementation of policy on risk
oversight and management or for sen
management to make statements to t

the involvement of all Directors, all of whom haJmisiness
omanagement skills, it was not considered necedsagstablish a
hevritten policy. The Company adheres to the Recomntardaunder

Board concerning those matters.

)

this Principle for statements by senior managentetite Board.
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(In Singapore dollars)

Note 2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000

Revenue from continuing operations 4 118,733 128,959
Other operating income 4 1,116 1,689
Cost of materials (61,265) (73,776)
Employee, contract labour and related costs 2,3 (27,318)
Depreciation and amortisation (5,256) (4,931)
Property related expenses (2,595) (2,528)
Other operating expenses 4 (13,367) (12,081)
Finance costs (474) (878)
Share of results of associates (613) (1,357)
Profit before taxation 6,905 7,779
Tax benefit / (expense) 5 303 (553)
Profit for the year from continuing operations

after taxation 7,208 7,226

Other comprehensive income:

- Items that may be subsequently reclassified to
profit and loss
Foreign currency translation on consolidation 326) (135)
Effect of tax on other comprehensive income - -

(326) (135)
Total comprehensive income 6,882 7,091
Profit/ (loss) attributable to :
Owners of parent 6,929 7,836
Non-controlling interest 279 (610)
Profit for the year 7,208 7,226
Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:
Owners of parent 6,603 7,701
Non-controlling interest 279 (610)
6,882 7,091
Earnings per share (cents)
Basic earnings per share 6 3.24 3.69
Diluted earnings per share 6 3.23 3.67
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(In Singapore dollars)

Note 2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 8 33,101 35,833
Intangible assets 9 13,212 11,919
Deferred tax assets 5 1,943 754
Loan receivable from an associate 11 919 -
Investment in an associate 11 2,578 2,768
Others 1 1
51,754 51,274
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 20 21,355 24,446
Inventories 12 21,829 28,254
Trade and other receivables 13 34,832 33,169
Prepayments 546 908
Tax recoverable 109 205
Assets held for sale 524 -
Financial asset at fair value through profit oslos 15 - 300
79,195 87,283
TOTAL ASSETS 130,949 138,557
Current liabilities
Payables 16 20,747 31,547
Interest-bearing liabilities 17 9,459 10,4p5
Provisions 18 1,138 1,248
Provision for taxation 431 1,015
Unearned income 64 64
Unrealised loss on derivatives 2,411 497
34,250 44,796
NET CURRENT ASSETS 44,945 42,487
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 17 5,14y 6,585
Deferred tax liabilities 5 2,622 2,161
Provisions 18 443 384
Unearned income - 63
8,212 9,143
TOTAL LIABILITIES 42,462 53,939
NET ASSETS 88,487 84,618
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Contributed equity 19 37,623 37,083
Reserves (251) 110
Retained earnings 50,099 45,955
87,471 83,148
Non-controlling interest 1,016 1,470
TOTAL EQUITY 88,487 84,618
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 130,949 138,557
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(In Singapore dollars)

Share
capital — Foreign Share
exercise of  currency based
Share share translation payments Retained Non-
Note capital options reserve reserve earnings Total controlling Total equity
(@ (b) (c) interest
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

Balance at 1.7.2011 36,863 120 (496) 537 41,340 78,364 1,902 80,266
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - (135) - - (135) - (135)
Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - 7,836 7,836 (610) 7,226
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (135) - 7,836 7,701 (610) 7,091
Exercise of employee share options 19 66 34 - (34) - 66 - 66
Cost of share-based payments 25(a) - - - 238 - 238 - 238
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - - - 785 578
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - - 516) (515) (370) (885)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 7 - - - - (2,706) (2,706) - (2,706)
Disposal of subsidiary - - - - - - 68 68
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - (98) (98)
Balance at 30.06.2012 36,929 154 (631) 741 45,955 83,148 1,470 84,618
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - (326) - - (326) - (326)
Profit for the year - - - - 6,929 6,929 279 208,
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - (326) - 6,929 6,603 279 6,882
Exercise of employee share options 19 117 72 - (72) - 117 - 117
Share issued, net of expenses 19 351 - - - - 351 - 351
Cost of share-based payments 25(a) - - - 173 - 173 - 173
Expiry of employee share options - - - (136) 136 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 10 - - - - (167) (167) (728) (895)
Change of interest in subsidiary company - - - - 12) ( (12) 55 43
Contribution of capital by non-controlling

interest - - - - - - 37 37
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 7 - - - - (2,742) (2,742) - (2,742)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - 97) 97)
Balance at 30.06.2013 37,397 226 (957) 706 50,099 87,471 1,016 88,487

@
(b)

(©

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share capital — exercise of share options is useecbrd the transfer from share-based paymentweesipon the exercise of the share options.

Foreign currency translation reserve is used torceexchange differences arising from the trarmtatif the financial statements of foreign operatiamose functional currencies are

different from that of the Group's presentatiorrency.

The share-based payments reserve is made up cditingative value of services received from empleyeeorded over the vesting period commencing ftegrant date of equity-

settled share options and is reduced by the erpiexercise of the share options.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeanded 30 June 2013
(In Singapore dollars)

Note 2013 2012
S$'000 S$°000
Cash flows from operating activities :
Operating profit before taxation 6,905 7,779
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 ,408 4,225
Amortisation of intangible assets 9 850 706
Bad debts written off 4 - 2
Allowance for doubtful debts, net 4 - 297
Allowance for inventory obsolescence 4 19 45
Inventories written off 4 3 3
Interest expenses 474 878
Interest income 4 (152) (220)
Property, plant and equipment written off 4 133 4
Patented technology costs written off 4 5 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 (59) (100)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 5 13
Loss on disposal of equity interest in subsidiary 4 - 87
Loss on remeasurement of investment in assatidser value 4 - 874
Provisions made, net 19 152 214
Cost of share-based payments 157 238
Fair value adjustment for financial asset thropgffit or loss 4 - (800)
Share of results of associates 613 1,357
Unrealised loss on derivatives 2,411 497
Unrealised exchange difference (8) (75)
Operating profit before reinvestment in working caital 15,914 16,024
Decrease in stocks and work-in-progress 7,591 7274,
(Increase)/ decrease in projects-in-progress 028, 2,421
Decrease/ (increase) in debtors 2,790 (778)
Decrease in creditors (12,167) (1,284)
Cash generated from operations 9,104 21,110
Interest received 152 220
Interest paid 477) (885)
Income taxes paid (1,032) (2,274)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,747 18,171
Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8(b) ,32@ (5,740)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andpggent 8(c) 83 131
Increase in computer software 9 (530) (83)
Increase in development expenditure (2,390) (37)
Increase in patented technology 9 (34) (312)
Investment in associate 11(b) (453) (1,451)
Decrease/ (increase) in amount due from associate 193 (924)
Subscription of convertible loan stocks 11(b) 9Pl -
Acquisition of subsidiary - 157
Disposal of subsidiary - (77)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest 10(a) 69 (385)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,965) (8,440)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeanded 30 June 2013

(In Singapore dollars)

Cash flows from financing activities :
Net increase in amount due to directors
Repayments of bank borrowings
Dividends paid on ordinary shares
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

Proceeds from exercise of employee share options

Proceeds from issue of shares
- by the Company to shareholders

- by subsidiary company to non-controllintgrest

Proceeds from disposal of equity interest to controlling

interest
Repayment of hire purchase creditors

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equisale

Net foreign exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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20

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
22 30
(1,188) (3,289)
(2,742) @7
97)( (98)
117 66
351 -
37 -
43 -
(1,263) 8®,6
(4,720) (8,681)
(2,938) 1,050
(101) 11
20 24241 23,180
21,202 24,241




Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)
1. Corporate information

This financial report of Zicom Group Limited (th€6mpany” or “Parent Entity”) and its subsidiaries fhe
year ended 30 June 2013 was authorised for isageordance with a resolution of the directors ®Sé&ptember
2013.

Zicom Group Limited is a company limited by sharerporated in Australia whose shares are pubtrelgled
on the Australian Securities Exchange.

The nature of the operations and principal acésitf the Group are described in the Directorsdrep
2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose finanoéglort, which has been prepared in accordance tvih
requirements of theCorporations Act 2001 Australian Accounting Standards and other authtive
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Statsl&oard. The financial report has also been prepame
a historical cost basis except for derivative fitiahinstruments which have been measured at fhieivalues.

The financial report is presented in Singaporeagsland all values are rounded to the nearestahdudollars
(S$'000) unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Statement of compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Acotimg Standards and International Financial Repgrtin
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International éthog Standards Board.

(i) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and amerflestralian Accounting Standards and AASB
Interpretations as of 1 July 2012.

» AASB 2010 — 8Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -erbef Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets [AASB 112] effective 1 Jan 2012

» AASB 2011 - 9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -sdt@tion of Other
Comprehensive Income [AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 20,1132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049] effective
1 July 2012

The adoption of these standards and interpretatihsot have any effect on the financial perforeeor
position of the Group.

(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations issuednotieffective

Certain Australian Accounting Standards and Integpiens have been recently issued or amended but ar
not yet effective have not been adopted by the Bfouthe annual reporting period ended 30 Jun8201
The directors expect the adoption of these newaanehded standards and interpretations below wik ha
no material impact on the financial statementhiengeriod of initial application.

» AASB 10Consolidated Financial Statements

» AASB 11Joint Arrangements

» AASB 12Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

» AASB 13Fair Value Measurement

» AASB 119Employee Benefits

» AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards -cl@ssres — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

» AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards ragisfrom Annual

Improvements 2009 — 2011 Cycle

» AASB 2012-9Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the withdrafAlstralian Interpretation
1039

» AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards tmd®e Individual Key
Management Personnel Disclosure Requirements [AK3B

» AASB 1053Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Stards

» AASB 2012 -3Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards se@iig Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

» AASB 9 Financial Instruments

» Annual Improvements 2009 — 2011 Cy#lenual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
[[FRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32, IAS 34]

-31-



Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policiescont’d)

2.3

Principles of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 July 2009

The consolidated financial statements comprisditia@cial statements of the Company and its suasas as
at the balance sheet date.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which@neup has the power to govern the financial andaijey
policies so as to obtain benefits from their atiggi. The existence and effect of potential votigbts that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considevbdn assessing whether the Group controls anettiiy.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries usdde preparation of the consolidated financiakestents are
prepared for the same reporting date as the Compsing consistent accounting policies. All intraxgp

balances, transactions, unrealised gain and lagssedting from intra-group transactions and dividierare
eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of iaitgpn, being the date on which the Group obta&iostrol,
and continue to be consolidated until the dategheh control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries held by Zicom Groupitéoh are accounted for at cost in the separatefiah
statements of the Parent Entity less any impairmcieatges. Dividends received from subsidiariesegerded
as a component of other revenues in the sepaedr®nt of comprehensive income of the ParentyE atitd

do not impact the recorded cost of investment. rLigaeipt of dividend payments from subsidiariee,Rarent
will assess whether any indicators of impairmerthefcarrying value of the investment in the sulasjdexist.

Where such indicators exist, to the extent thatddmeying value of the investment exceeds its recae
amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted fangishe acquisition method of accounting. The #&itjian
method of accounting involves recognising at thguéition date, separately from goodwill, the id&aible
assets required, the liabilities assumed and anycoatrolling interest in the acquiree. The idialtle assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are measurieia acquisition date fair values.

The difference between the above items and thedie of consideration (including the fair valdfeaay pre-
existing investment in the acquiree) is goodwiltlggcount on acquisition.

Non-controlling interests are allocated their shafreet profit after tax in the statement of confpmesive
income and are presented within equity in the clicested balance sheet, separately from the eqdithe
owners of the Parent.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the-controlling interest even if that results in diciebalance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiay does not result in a loss of control, is acted for as
an equity transaction.

If the group loses control over a subsidiary, it

« derecognises the assets (including goodwill) aatdilities of the subsidiary.
« derecognises the carrying amount of any non-cdimgointerest.

« derecognises the cumulative translation differemeesrded in equity.

e recognises the fair value of the considerationivece

e recognises the fair value of any investment rethine

e recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

» reclassifies the Group’s share of components pusijorecognised in other comprehensive income to

profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)
2. Summary of significant accounting policiescont’d)
2.3  Principles of consolidation (cabt’

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 July 2009

Certain of the above mentioned requirements weréeappn a prospective basis. The following diffezes,
however, are carried forward in certain instancesifthe previous basis of consolidation:

» Acquisitions of non-controlling interest, prior foJuly 2009, were accounted for using the paretityen
extension method, whereby, the difference betweertonsideration and the book value of the shatleeof
net assets acquired was recognised in goodwill.

» Losses incurred by the Group were attributed tonthre-controlling interest until the balance wasueat
to nil. Any further excess losses were attribui@dhe Group, unless the non-controlling interezd la
binding obligation to cover these. Losses priot thuly 2009 were not reallocated between non-obinty
interest and the owners of the Parent.

» Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for theestment retained at its proportionate share basset
value at the date control was lost. The carryialye of such investments at 1 July 2009 have nen be
restated.

2.4 Business combinations

Subsequent to 1 July 2009

Business combinations are accounted for using tlj@isidion method. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination agasured initially at their fair values at the asgiion date.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expeims¢he periods in which the costs are incurred tie
services are received.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesdnifwecial assets and liabilities assumed for appatgr
classification and designation in accordance wlith ¢ontractual terms, economic circumstances anelr ot
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition datéis Thcludes the separation of embedded derivaiivédmst
contracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferredhzyacquirer will be recognised at fair value atabguisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value ofdh&ngent consideration which is deemed to besaeteor
liability will be recognised in accordance with ABSL39 either in profit or loss or as a change tcepth
comprehensive income. If the contingent considtamas classified as equity, it should not be resoead until
it is finally settled within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in stafjes,previously held equity interest is remeasuredsa
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gaitoss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group elects for each individual business caatinn, whether non-controlling interest in acqei(é any)
is recognised on the acquisition date at fair vatuet the non-controlling interest’s proportiamahare of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the aeraition transferred in the business combinatioemamount
of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if #Ngnd the fair value of the Group’s previouslycheljuity
interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net failue of the acquiree’s identifiable assets aalilities is
recorded as goodwill. The accounting policy foodwill is set out in Note 2.8 (a). In instancesenthe
latter amount exceeds the former, the excess égnésed as gain on bargain purchase in profit €8 tm the
acquisition date.

Prior to 1 July 2009
In comparison to the above-mentioned requiremdéiméstollowing differences applied:

Business combinations were accounted for using tihehpse method. Transaction costs directly atatia
to the acquisition formed part of the acquisitimstc The non-controlling interest (formerly knoasminority
interest) was measured at the proportionate siHdhe @cquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were atambior in separate steps. Any additional acquiteare

of interest did not affect previously recogniseddwill. The goodwill amounts calculated at eachpst
acquisition were accumulated.

-33-



Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policiescont'd)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Business combinations (cont'd)

When the Group acquired a business, embedded tieewaeparated from the host contract by the aequi
were not reassessed on acquisition unless thedsssoombination resulted in a change in the terfinkeo
contract that significantly modified the cash flothat otherwise would have been required undecongract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and dfnlthe Group had a present obligation, the ecdnom
outflow was more likely than not and a reliableiraate was determinable. Subsequent adjustmeritgeto
contingent consideration were adjusted against\gitlod

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entiy éimgages in business activities from which it reasn
revenues and incur expenses (including revenuegxmehses relating to transactions with other corapts
of the same entity), whose operating results agelagly reviewed by the entity’s chief operatingcidéon
makers to make decisions about resources to beatdid to the segment and assess its performanciand
which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments have been identified based eimformation provided to the chief operating diecis
makers — being the executive management team.

The group aggregates two or more operating segmerga they have similar economic characteristios, a
the segments are similar in each of the followiegpects.

» Nature of the products and services

» Type or class of customer for the products andicesv

» Methods used to distribute the products or prottdeservices, and if applicable

» Nature of the regulatory environment

Operating segments that meet the quantitativerierites prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately.
However, an operating segment that does not meeguhntitative criteria is still reported separnatehere
information about the segment would be useful graisf the financial statements.

Segment results include items directly attributaiolea segment as well as those that can be althaatea
reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comasporate assets, head office expenses, stafarptions
which are yet to earn revenue and income tax assetdiabilities. Segment capital expenditurehis total
costs incurred during the year to acquire segmes#ta by geographical area that are expected tisdkefor
more than one year.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

The presentation currency of Zicom Group Limite8iisgapore dollars (S$). Each subsidiary in theu@ro
determines its own functional currency and itentduided in the financial statements of each subsidia
company are measured using that functional currency

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiallgaaled in the functional currencies of the Compangt
its subsidiaries at exchange rates ruling at Hrestiction dates. Monetary assets and liabilitiesmhénated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at theoh#xchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Nametary
items that are measured in terms of historical toatforeign currency are translated using thénarge
rates as at the dates of the initial transactioon-hMonetary items measured at fair value in a forei
currency are translated using the exchange ratég atate when the fair value was determined.

Differences arising on the settlement or transtatibmonetary items are recognised in profit oslescept
for exchange differences arising on monetary itdrasform part of the Group’s net investment irefgn
operations, which are recognised initially in otbemprehensive income and accumulated under foreign
currency translation reserve in equity.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(c) Consolidated financial statements

On consolidation, the results and balance shefetreiign operations are translated into Singapoftkaido
using the following procedures:

« Assets and liabilities are translated at theiolpsate prevailing at reporting date; and

* Income and expenses are translated at averapparegge rates for the year, which approximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The exchange differences arising on the translaienrecognised in other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the componenttbéocomprehensive income relating to that paicul
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment areiéiy recorded at cost. The cost of an item of jerty plant
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, anydifpitlis probable that future economic beneéissociated
with the item will flow to the Group and the coséttloe item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant andmgant are measured at cost less accumulated detpwaci
and accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life andhé¢fore not depreciated. Depreciation of an dmsghs when
it is available for use and is computed on thegittdine basis over the estimated useful liveshef assets as
follows:

Leasehold properties over remaining period of dasé
expiring years 2039 to 2043

Machinery 10 years

Office furniture and equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Computers 1 year

The carrying values of property, plant and equipnaea reviewed for impairment when events or charige
circumstances indicate that the carrying value n@tybe recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciatiorthoe are reviewed at each financial year end afjastatl
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derexsed upon disposal or when no future economicfiisne
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gailogs on derecognition of the asset is includeddfitpor loss
in the year the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

(@ Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination isiaflif measured at cost being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value ef@roup’s net identifiable assets acquired andliligis
assumed. If this consideration transferred is falvan the fair value of the net identifiable ass#tthe
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recogniseprofit or loss.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured@ist less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill woed in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Groap&h-generating units that are expected to benafit

the synergies of the combination, irrespective b&tler other assets or liabilities of the acquaee
assigned to those units.
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2.8

29

Intangible assets (cont'd)

(@)

(b)

Goodwill (cont'd)

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has ballmcated is tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-gingrunit may be impaired, by comparing the cagyi
amount of the cash-generating unit, including flecated goodwill, with the recoverable amounttod t
cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable amafithe cash-generating unit is less than the aagryi
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in pafiloss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating and part of the operation within that unit is dispd

of, the goodwill associated with the disposed oj@mais included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss onafiapof the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relativedaies of the disposed operation and the portfon o
the cash-generating unit retained.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately or in a basibombination are measured initially at cost.cds
of an intangible asset acquired in a business awmatibi is its fair value as at the date of acqoisit
Following initial recognition, intangible assetg aarried at cost less any accumulated amortisatidn
any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessieé either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are atised over their estimated useful lives and assefsse
impairment whenever there is an indication thatiti@ngible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method are reviewdelst at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives @t ryet available for use are tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if the events and ainstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired either individually or at the cash-geniegunit level. Such intangible assets are not &isex.

The useful life of an intangible asset with an fimee useful life is reviewed annually to determin
whether the useful life assessment continues tsupportable. If not, the change in useful lifenfro
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line bamsisr the estimated useful lives of intangible tsas
follows :-

Computer software costs &rge
Customer list 8 years
Patented technology 10 — 20 years
Developed/ Unpatented technology 7 — 14 years

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An ibtaragiset arising from development expenditure on
an individual project is recognised only when th@@p can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it willawailable for use or sale, its intention to compland

its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asdegenerate future economic benefits, the avmlity of
resources to complete and the ability to measuiabte the expenditure during the development.
Amortisation begins when the development is conepdetd the asset is available for use or sale. Any
expenditure so capitalised is amortised over thimgef expected benefit from the related project.

Club membership
Club membership was acquired separately and ismottsed as it has an indefinite life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangisieet are measured as the difference betweertthe n
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of thet asd are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whhi#reris an indication that an asset may be impaifeahy
such indication exists, or when annual impairmesting for an asset (i.e. goodwill acquired in aibess
combination) is required, the Group makes an estirobthe asset’s recoverable amount.
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2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ofssetss or cash-generating unit’s fair value lessscto sell
and its value in use and is determined for an idd&l asset, unless the asset does not generdténdasvs
that are largely independent of those from otheetasor groups of assets. In assessing value inthese
estimated future cash flows are discounted to firesent value using a pre-tax discount rate #fletats current
market assessments of the time value of moneytenddsks specific to the asset. In determiningvalue less
cost to sell, recent market transactions are takenaccount, if available. If no such transactian be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is us@tiese calculations are corroborated by valuatiatiiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companiestioer available fair value indicators. Where ¢iaerying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable antherasset is considered impaired and is writtenndimaits
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recedrisprofit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting dateveisetier there is any indication that previouslogrised
impairment losses recognised for an asset otharghadwill may no longer exist or may have decrdadé
such indication exists, the recoverable amourgtisnrated. A previously recognised impairment Isseversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates tesdetermine the asset’s recoverable amourg #ireclast
impairment loss was recognised. If that is theecdlse carrying amount of the asset is increaseitisto
recoverable amount. That increased amount canncgeexthe carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairnhesg been recognised for the asset in prior y&egersal

of an impairment loss is recognised in profit ado

2.10 Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiagy joint venture, in which the Group has significefluence.
An associate is equity accounted for from the dia¢eGroup obtains significant influence until theted the
Group ceases to have significant influence oveatisociate.

The Group generally deems they have significamaémice if they have over 20% of the voting rights.

Under the equity method, investment in the assedsatarried in the balance sheet at cost plusammgtisition
changes in the Group’s share of net assets ofsgmcite. Goodwill relating to an associate ituihed in the
carrying amount of the investment and is neitheordised nor tested for impairment.

The profit or loss reflects the Group’s share &f thsults of operations of the associate. Whenethas been
a change recognised in other comprehensive inconieebassociate, the Group recognises its shaseaf
changes in other comprehensive income. Unreatia@ts and losses resulting from transactions betwee
Group and the associate are eliminated to the eafehe interest in the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Growgtetmines whether it is necessary to recognisediti@enal
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in itsoagte. The Group determines at each reporting da
whether there is any objective evidence that thestment in the associate is impaired. If thidéscase the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as tfferdnce between the recoverable amount of thecedso
and its carrying value and recognises the losslaare of results of associates” in the profit @slo

When the Group's share of losses in an associai@®qr exceeds its interest in the associateGthap does
not recognise further losses, unless it has indwhdigations or made payments on behalf of thecate.

The reporting dates of the associate and the Gamulentical and the associate’s accounting psdiconform
to those used by the Group for like transactionserents in similar circumstances.

Upon loss of significant influence over the assmgidhe Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference betwehe carrying amount of the associate upon losigwificant
influence and the fair value of the aggregate efrettained investment and proceeds from disposat@gnised

in the profit or loss.
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2.11 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised on the balancé whea, and only when, the Group becomes a partiyeo
contractual provisions of the financial instrumerfthe Group determines the classification of iteficial
assets at initial recognition.

When financial assets are recognised initiallyytaee measured at fair value, plus, in the cadiahcial
assets not at fair value through profit or lossedly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assetaidiepe their classification as follows :-
@) Financial assets at fair value througlofit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slonclude financial assets held for trading andrftial
assets designated upon initial recognition atvalue through profit and loss. This category idelsi
derivative financial instruments entered by theuprthat are not designated as hedging instruments i
hedge relationships as defined in AASB 139.

The Group has not designated any financial asgets initial recognition at fair value through ptofi
or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assetfair value through profit or loss are measwaefir
value. Any gains or losses arising from changesimvalue of the financial assets are recognised i
profit or loss and the related assets are cladsifsecurrent assets in the balance sheet.

(b) Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detgrable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivablese®uient to initial recognition, loans and receigabl
are carried at amortised cost using the effectiterést method, less impairment losses. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when thadand receivables are derecognised or impaineld, a
through the amortisation process. These are iadiirdcurrent assets, except for those with magsrit
greater than 12 months after the balance sheetwlaieh are classified as non-current.

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include eqaibd debt securities. Equity investments class#died
available for sale are those that are neither ifledsas held for trading nor designated at failuea
through profit and loss. Debt securities in trasegory are those that are intended to be heldrfor
indefinite period of time and they may be soldésponse to needs of liquidity or changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale finaial assets are measured at fair value with gains o
losses from changes in fair value recognised irrotomprehensive income, except for impairment
losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on nmgrietaruments and interest calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profitoss. The cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is rafiledsfrom equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment when the financial aissderecognised.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair valaenot be reliably measured are measured at cost
less impairment loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised where the contaacight to receive cash flows from the assetédwgsred.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its etyirthe difference between the carrying amounttaedsum of

the consideration received and any cumulative gailoss that has been recognised in other compsélhen
income is now recognised in profit or loss.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemthette is any objective evidence that a finarasakt or
group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairmerssion financial assets carried at amortised cstieen
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured agliffe@ence between the asset’s carrying amountthaed
present value of estimated future cash flows distamiat the financial asset’s original effectiviemsst rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced throogluse of an allowance account. The impairrosstis
recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the cargingunt of impaired financial assets is reducedctiyrer
if an amount was charged to the allowance accdh@tamounts charged to the allowance account atemvr
off against the carrying value of the financialeiss

To determine whether there is objective evidenag¢ din impairment loss on financial assets has iaduthe
Group considers factors such as the probabilitpsdlvency or significant financial difficulties ofie debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the immpairt loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impamnnwas recognised, the previously recognised impsait

loss is reversed to the extent that the carryinguarhof the asset does not exceed its amortisedatdbe
reversal date. The amount of reversal is recogrirspdofit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on handndeeposits, and short-term, highly liquid inve=tis
that are readily convertible to known amounts shcand which are subject to an insignificant risklmnges
in value. For the purposes of the statement di dasvs, cash and cash equivalents consist of aashcash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstandim lbaerdrafts which forms an integral part of th@@’'s
cash management. Bank overdrafts are includedmitidérest-bearing liabilities under current lidi@ks on
the balance sheet.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andeddisable value. Costs incurred in bringing thesntories to
their present location and condition are accoufdeds follows:

- Raw material: purchase costs on a first-in firstlzagis.

- Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of tlimaterials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operasipgoity. These costs are assigned on a first-in
first-out basis.

When necessary, allowance is provided for damaglesblete and slow moving items to adjust the cagyi
value of inventories to the lower of cost and metlisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling piicéhe ordinary course of business less estimatsstis of
completion and the estimated costs necessary te thaksale.

Construction contracts

The Group principally operates fixed price contsacontract revenue and contract costs are recahase
revenue and expenses, respectively, by refererthe &iage of completion of the contract activitthe balance
sheet date, when the outcome of a constructiorractrtan be estimated reliably.

The outcome of a construction contract can be eséidreliably when i) total contract revenue cameasured
reliably; (ii) it is probable that the economic leits associated with the contract will flow to teetity; (iii)
the costs to complete the contract and the stageropletion can be measured reliably; and (iv)diwetract
costs attributable to the contract can be cledeyiified and measured reliably so that the actosts incurred
can be compared with prior estimates.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measuretlse(jaincipally during the early stages of a cawt), both
contract revenue and expenses are not recognisiéthencontract outcome can be estimated reliably.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Construction contracts (cont'd)

The stage of completion is measured by the prapottiat contract costs incurred to date bear testienated
total contract cost. Only costs that reflect ssrgiperformed are included in the estimated tatstiscof the
contract.

An expected loss on the construction contractdegeised as an expense immediately when it is jtetibat
total contract costs will exceed total contracierave.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has amirebligation (legal or constructive) as a restild past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of researembodying economic benefits will be requiresktitie the
obligation and the amount of the obligation carebmated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheetddt@edjusted to reflect the current best estintaieis no
longer probable that an outflow of economic resesiwill be required to settle the obligation, thevision is
reversed. If the effect of the time value of morsegnaterial, provisions are discounted using aegurpre- tax
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the riskezifio to the liability. When discounting is usdde increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is re@eghas a finance cost.

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recoghisben the product is sold or service provideditidin
recognition is based on historical experience. ifilial estimate of warranty-related costs is eswved annually
and revised, if necessary.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fairevalbere there is reasonable assurance that thevgtebe
received and all attaching conditions will be coieglwith. When the grant relates to an expensms, iteis
recognised as income on a systematic basis overettied that the costs, which it is intended to pensate,
are expensed. Where the grant relates to an #ssdgir value is recognised as deferred capihtgon the
balance sheet and is amortised to profit or loes the expected useful life of the relevant asgetjual annual
instalments. Alternatively, it may be presentecttos balance sheet by deducting the grant in agiait the
carrying amount of asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and owlyen, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument. The Grailgtermines the classification of its financial lldkes at

initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiallst fair value plus in the case of financial liat#$ not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributaltansaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities dependshair classification as follows:-
@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profir loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss includes financial liabilities held for diag and
financial liabilities designated upon initial reedtipon at fair value through profit or loss. Fircéed
liabilities are classified as held for trading lilely are acquired for the purpose of selling inribar
term. This category includes derivative finandratruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge refdtips. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they aregihedied as effective hedging instruments.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial lidids at fair value through profit or loss are meas at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from chemdn fair value of the financial liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has not designated any financial liabditupon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.18 Financial liabilities (cont'd)
(b) Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilgés are subsequently measured at amortised cogt usi
the effective interest rate method. Gains ancesse recognised in profit or loss when the litdsl
are derecognised, and through the amortisatiorepsoc

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the galfion under the liability is discharged, cancelbedxpires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced &yother from the same lender on substantiallgibfit terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substalfiyimodified, such an exchange or modificatiotréated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the ogmition of a new liability, and the differencethe respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the obst qualifying asset if they are directly attrigble to the
acquisition, construction or production of thateassCapitalisation of borrowing costs commencesnathe
activities to prepare the asset for its intendesl arssale are in progress and the expenditurebamdwing
costs are incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assetsabstantially completed for their intended ussale. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the periegl titcur. Borrowing costs consists of interest atir
costs that an entity incurs in connection with tleerowing of funds.

2.20 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement ispotains a lease is based on the substance afimgament
at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arramgnt is dependent on the use of a specific assstets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asast,iethat right is not explicitly specified ingharrangement.

Group as a lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially altigies and benefits incidental to ownership of tsaskd item to
the Group, are capitalised at the inception ofltase at the fair value of the leased asset tmywir, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lgag@ents are apportioned between the finance charge
reduction of the lease liability so as to achiewemstant rate of interest on the remaining balahtee liability.
Finance charges are charged to profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated ovehthisof the estimated useful life of the assetherlease
term if there is no reasonable certainty that theu@ will obtain ownership by the end of the letesen.

Operating lease payments are recognised as ansxpeprofit or loss on a straight-line basis other lease
term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group transfers substantiallthallrisks and benefits of ownership of the leasenh iis
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s pdiicysales of goods as set out in note 2.23. @asiried in
connection with negotiating and arranging the foealease is recognised as an expense when theggamitfit
is recognised.

Leases where the Group retains substantially altitks and rewards of ownership of the assetlassified as
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurredeagotiating an operating lease are added to tigimg amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the les®h the same bases as rental income. The d@stppolicy
for rental income is set out in note 2.23.
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2.21 Employee benefits

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

Wages and salaries, annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including noonatary benefits, annual leave expected to besdettl
within 12 months of the balance sheet date aregrésed in respect of employees’ services up to the
reporting date and measured at the amounts expectedpaid when liabilities are settled.

Long service leave / retirement benefits

The liabilities for long service leave and retiretndenefits, applicable to Australian and Thailand
subsidiaries respectively, are recognised in tbeipion for employee benefits and measured atthssmt
value of expected future payments to be made ipersof services provided by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Consideration is given to ¢éagedature wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service. Eggduture payments are discounted using markedsiel
at the reporting date on national government bavitts terms to maturity and currencies that match, a
closely as possible, the estimated future cashoogf

Superannuation

The Group participates in the national pension sehas defined by the laws of the countries in wiitich
has operations.

Contributions are made by the Group, for its Australsubsidiaries, to employee accumulation
superannuation funds.

The Group’s companies in Singapore make contribgtto the Central Provident Fund scheme, a defined
contribution pension scheme.

The subsidiary company incorporated and operatiriige People’s Republic of China (“PRC") is required
to provide certain staff pension benefits to itsplayees under existing PRC regulations. Pension
contributions are provided at rates stipulated RCRegulators and are contributed to a pension fund
managed by government agencies, which are respenfib administering these amounts for the
subsidiary’s employees.

Contributions to defined contribution pension scheare recognised as an expenses in the perioddh wh
the related services is performed.

Employee share option plan

Employees (including key management personnehef3roup receive remuneration in the form of share
options as consideration for service rendered. dbst of these equity-settled share based payment
transactions with employees is measured by referamthe fair value of the options at the date bictv

the options are granted. This cost is recogniseprafit or loss, with a corresponding increaselia t
employee share option reserve, over the vestinggeFhe cumulative expenses are recognised at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects elxeent to which the vesting period has expired ted
Group’s best estimate of the number of options Withtultimately vest. The charge or credit to ptafr

loss for a period represents the movement in cuiaalaxpense recognised as at beginning and end of
that period and is recognised in employee costs.

No expense is recognised for options that do rirnately vest. The employee share option reserve is
transferred to retained earnings upon expiry defture of the share options after its vesting détaen

the options are exercised, the employee shareropgerve is transferred to share capital as newesh
are issued.

2.22 Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrumenthi¢dge its risks associated with foreign curren8uch
derivative financial instruments are classifiediaancial assets or liabilities at fair value thgbuprofit or loss
and are initially recognised at fair value on tleedon which a derivative contract is entered Bmd are
subsequently remeasured at fair value at each dmkireet date.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in falu@@n derivative financial instruments are takeprofit or
loss.
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2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair eélile consideration received or receivable toektent
it is probable that the economic benefits will fleavthe Group and the revenue can be reliably nmedsurhe
following specific recognition criteria must alse et before revenue is recognised :-

Sale of goods
Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when thiiségr risks and rewards of ownership of the gobdge

been passed to the buyer, which generally coingidsdelivery and acceptance of the goods sold.
Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered are recognised wgrformance of services and the delivery to custemer

Revenue recognised on projects

Revenue on contract jobs are recognised using tltemtage of completion method. The stage of cotiople
is measured using the proportion of costs incutodtie estimated total costs to complete the ptojeosses,

if any, are immediately recognised when their exise is foreseen.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effectiterest method.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Group'striglreceive payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-lindsbaver the lease terms. The aggregate costefiives
provided to lessees is recognised as a reducticentdil income over the lease term on a straigietthasis.

Commission income

Commission income is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.24 Taxation

@)

(b)

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for therastt and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tamasiuthorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enactedostasuively enacted at the balance sheet datégein t
countries where the Group operates and generatsliéancome.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit os lescept to the extent that the tax relates tostem
recognised outside profit or loss, either in otbemprehensive or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the &bams with respect to situations in which applieabx
regulations are subject to interpretation and distads provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liabilitgthod on temporary differences at the balancetshe
date between the tax bases of assets and liabititiel their carrying amounts for financial repatin
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all terary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from thetialirecognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a businessnbination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabigfipor loss; and

- Inrespect of taxable temporary differences astatiwith investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, when the timinghefreversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporarffedénces will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.24 Taxation (cont'd)
(b) Deferred tax (cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised foedlictible temporary differences, carry forward mfised
tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tatsasse recognised to the extent that it is prabtiat
taxable profit will be available against which ttheductible temporary differences, and the carrwéod
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses caltilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the dealeditmporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaotihat is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the actiogrprofit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences eissed with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, def¢ee assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences rellerse in the foreseeable future and taxabletprofi
will be available against which the temporary difeces can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is veadeat each balance sheet date and reduced tgrtéme e
that it is no longer probable that sufficient tabegirofit will be available to allow all or part tiie deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferrecisarts are reassessed at each balance sheeaidlate a
recognised to the extent that it has become prehihbtt future taxable profit will allow the defedréax
asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuréueaiax rates that are expected to apply in tlae when
the asset is realised or the liability is settledsed on tax rates and tax laws that have beeneenac
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesofiiset, if a legally enforceable right existséd off current
income tax assets against current income tax iligsiland the deferred taxes relate to the sanabtex
entity and the same taxation authority.

(c) Goods and service tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisedmegaiount of goods and services tax except:

- Where the goods and services tax incurred on ehpaecof assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the goadd services tax is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part ofetkense item as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with tbertnof goods and services tax included.

The net amount of goods and services tax recowerabin, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables om#h@nce sheet.

2.25 Contributed equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increatartsts directly attributable to the issue of rehares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, n&bqgffrom the proceeds.

2.26 Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividetgonofit attributable to members of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary sharesamdig during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share is determined by digdire net profit attributable to members of the Canmyp

by the adjusted weighted average number of ordishayes which takes into account the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares comprising ofighoptions granted to employees.
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2.27 Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

@)

(b)

a person or a close member of that persontslfais related to the Group and Company if thatgoer.
(i)  has control or joint control over the Compa
(i)  has significant influence over the Compaow;

(i) is a member of the key management persoofi¢ghe Group or Company or of a parent of the
Company.

An entity is related to the Group and the Compdany of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the gnmep (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to dkigers).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture ofdtieer entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is aniber).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same thady.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity aheé other entity is an associate of the thirdtgnti

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan fa bienefit of employees of either the Company or
entity related to the Company. If the Companysdslf such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Company.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled byparson identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant uighce over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parktite entity).

2.28 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Group’s financial statemeetgiires management to make judgements, estiraates
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @fimess, expenses, assets and liabilities, and shioslire of
contingent liabilities at the balance sheet datecdstainty about these assumptions and estimateéd oesult
in outcomes that could require a material adjustrt@the carrying amount of the asset or liabiiffected in
the future periods.

(@)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management has identified the following criticataanting policies for which significant judgements,
estimates and assumptions are made. Actual resalsdiffer from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions and may materially aiffieancial results or the balance sheet reportied i
future periods.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is deated on a straight-line basis over the propetantp

and equipment’s estimated economic useful livesnddament estimates the useful lives of these
property, plant and equipment to be within 1 toy8@rs. Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological developments could impact the econameful lives and the residual values of these
assets, therefore, future depreciation chargesddoeilrevised. The carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment at the balance stat is disclosed in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses whether there are any indicdtionpairment for all non-financial assets at each
balance sheet date. Goodwill and other intangibligs indefinite lives are tested for impairment

annually and at other times when such indicatoist.e©ther non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the gagrgmounts may not be recoverable.
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2.28 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (ddnt

(@)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty {an
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

When value in use calculations are undertaken, geanant must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit amasé a suitable discount rate in order to calcufate
present value of those cash flows. Further detdilthe key assumptions applied in the impairment
assessment of goodwill are given in Note 9 to ih@nitial statements.

(i) Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemthette is any objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. To determine whether therejexctibe evidence of impairment, the Group considers
factors such as the probability of insolvency gngficant financial difficulties of the debtor adéfault

or significant delay in payments.

Where there is objective evidence of impairmeng #mount and timing of future cash flows are
estimated based on historical loss experience goeeta with similar credit risk characteristics. The
carrying amount of the Group’s loans and receivablde balance sheet date is disclosed in note 21
the financial statements.

(iv) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by referenttee stage of completion of the contract activity
at the balance sheet date, when the outcome afigtroation contract can be estimated reliably. The
stage of completion is measured by reference tgtbportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date bear to the estimated total aohtosts. Significant assumptions are required to
estimate the total contract costs that will affbet stage of completion. The estimates are madsdbas
on past experience and knowledge of the projectnergs. The carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising from construction contractstaé balance sheet date are disclosed in Note fi#eto
financial statements.

Judgements made in applying accounting sic

In the process of applying the Group’s accountimijcpes, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimatiovtsich has the most significant effect on the anteun
recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in numéuoisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the group-wide provision for incomedsx There are certain transactions and compusation
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncert@during the ordinary course of business. Theu@ro
recognises liabilities for expected tax issues thaseestimates of whether additional taxes wilbbe.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters fediht from the amounts that were initially reccegmi,
such differences will impact the income tax andedefd tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amount of@Gneup’s tax payables and deferred tax liabilities a
30 June 2013 was S$431,000 (2012: S$1,015,0005%R622,000 (2012: S$2,161,000) respectively.
The Group also has deferred tax assets of S$1@38012: S$754,000) as at 30 June 2013.
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3. Segment information
Business segments

Identification of reportable segments

The group has identified its operating segmentsdbas internal reports that are reviewed and ugé¢lebexecutive
management team (the chief operating decision repkeassessing performance and in determiningltbeation
of resources. The operating segments identifiecsa follows:

» Offshore Marine, Oil and Gas Machinery — manufaztand supply of deck machinery, gas metering stsitio
offshore structures for underwater robots and edlagquipment, parts and services.

« Construction Equipment — manufacture and supplyasicete mixers and foundation equipment, including
equipment rental, parts and related services.

« Precision Engineering and Automation — manufactidinerecision and automation equipment, thermal keond
including equipment related parts and engineerangices.

« Industrial and Mobile Hydraulics — supply of hydiiawrive systems, parts and services.

Inter-segment sales

Inter-segment sales are recognised based on itiyeseatransfer price at arm’s length basis.

Unallocated revenue and expenses

Unallocated revenue comprises mainly non-segmeatanue including grants received by start-up djmers.
which are yet to earn revenue and fair value gaimerivative asset. Unallocated expenses comprialy of

non-segmental expenses such as head office expdosgson remeasurement or expenses relating tbugta
operations which are yet to earn revenue.
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3.  Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

The following tables present revenue mrdit information regarding operating segmentstfar years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012.

Precision
Offshore marine, engineering Industrial and
oil and gas Construction and mobile
machinery equipment automation hydraulics Consolidated

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Year ended 30 June 2013
Revenue
Sales to external customers 41,963 39,461 34,725 2,584 118,733
Other revenue 9 252 455 5 721
Inter-segment sales 137 7 31 839 1,014
Total segment revenue 42,109 39,720 35,211 3,428 120,468
Inter-segment elimination (1,014)
Unallocated revenue 243
Interest income 152
Total consolidated revenue 119,849
Results
Segment results 4,540 2,759 2,187 859 10,345
Unallocated revenue 243
Unallocated expenses (2,748)
Share of results of associate (613)
Profit before tax and finance cost 7,227
Finance costs (474)
Interest income 152
Profit before taxation 6,905
Income tax benefit/ (expense) 303
Net profit after taxation 7,208
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment 261 3,596 175 42 4,074
- intangible assets 154 198 876 31 1,259

5,333

Depreciation and amortisation 606 3,219 1,085 18 4,928
Other non-cash expenses 2,073 600 342 5 3,020
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3.

Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

Year ended 30 June 2012
Revenue

Sales to external customers
Other revenue
Inter-segment sales

Total segment revenue

Inter-segment elimination
Unallocated revenue
Interest income

Total consolidated revenue

Results

Segment results

Unallocated revenue
Unallocated expenses

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax and finance cost
Finance costs
Interest income

Profit before taxation
Income tax benefit/ (expense)

Net profit after taxation

Other segment information

Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment

- intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Other non-cash expenses

Precision
Offshore marine, engineering Industrial and
oil and gas Construction and mobile
machinery equipment automation hydraulics Consolidated
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$°000

34,302 57,167 34,721 2,769 128,959

52 207 171 5 435

- 15 4 414 433

34,354 57,389 34,896 3,188 129,827

(433)

1,034

220

130,648

1,916 6,394 2,722 668 11,700

1,034

(2,940)

(1,357)

8,437

(878)

220

7,779

(553)

7,226

328 7,016 1,317 - 8,661

4 - 99 - 103

8,764

552 3,122 931 15 4,620

541 663 172 139 1,515
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3.

Revenue

Sales to
external
customers

Other revenue
from external
customers

Other
segment
information
Segment non-
current assets

Investment in
associates

Unallocated
assets

Capital
expenditure

Segment information (cont'd)

Geographical segments

The Group's geographical segments for revenue anetarrent assets are determined based on locHttustomers
and assets respectively.

The following table presents revenue and certasetasnformation regarding geographical segmentthio years
ended 30 June 2013 and 2012.

Year ended 30 June 2013

- property, plant

and equipme

- intangible assets -

United

Australia Malaysia Singapore  China States Bangladesh Thailand Others Total
S$°000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$°000 S$°000 S$°000 S$°000 S$'000
16,450 11,723 34,23¢ 17,077 25,948 2,227 6,910 4,159 118,733
47 7 945 10 - - 34 73 1,116
119,849
3,882 4,379 29,962 243 - - 7,304 543 46,313
2,578

2,863

51,754
nt 111 262 3,697 3 - - 98 63 4,234
- 1,847 - - - 167 - 2,014

6,248
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United
Australia  Malaysia  Singapore China States Bangladesh Thailand Others Total
Revenue S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Sales to
external
customers 23,281 12,721 35,938 6,947 29,099 8,067 6,833 6,073 128,959
Other revenue
from external
customers 41 32 1,390 41 2 21 16 146 1,689
130,648
Other
segment
information
Segment non-
current assets 4,997 1,269 32,54° 284 - - 7,954 700 47,751
Investment in
associates 2,768
Unallocated
assets 755
51,274
Capital
expenditure
- property, plant
and equipment 772 1,121 6,481 37 - - 134 207 8,752
- intangible assets - - 2,110 - — - - 29 2,139
10,891

(In Singapore dollars)
3. Segment information (cont’d)
Geographical segments (cont'd)

Year ended 30 June 2012
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4. Revenue, income and expenses

0] Revenue

Sales of goods

Rendering of services

Rental revenue

Revenue recognised on projects

(i) Other operating income

Interest income

Commission income

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Service rendered

Government grants

Gain on financial asset recorded at fair valueubtoprofit or loss
Bad debts recovered

Trade discount received

Other revenue

(i)  Other operating expenses
Included in other operating expenses are the fatigw

Allowance for inventory obsolescence, net
Allowance for doubtful debts, net

Bad debts written off

Foreign exchange loss /(gain)

Provision for product warranties, net

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment written off
Warranty expense charged directly to profit or loss
Inventories written off

Patented technology cost written off

Loss on remeasurement of investment in associdsrtealue
Loss on disposal of equity interest in subsidiary
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Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$000
76,094 93,764

6,860 7,684

6,335 6,326
29,444 21,185

118,733 128,959
152 220
26 66
9 5 100
398 193
230 140
- 800
4 2
108 40
139 128
1,116 1,689
19 45
- 297
- 2
2,687 (161)
47 109
5 13
133 4
55 -
3 3
5 -
- 874
- 87
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5. Tax expense
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Current income tax
- Current income tax charge 544 1,073
- Adjustments in respect of previous years (96) ) (30
Deferred income tax
- Relating to the origination and reversal of tenappr
differences (1,258) (186)
- Adjustment in respect of previous years 507 (304)
Income tax (benefit)/ expense (303) 553

A reconciliation between the tax expense and tlelymt of accounting profit of the Group multiplieg the
applicable tax rate for the year ended 30 Juneasdsllows:

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$’000 S$'000
Profit before taxation 6,905 7,779
Tax expense :
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profithecountries
where the group operates 1,402 2,352
Release of deferred tax liability on intangible &sse (111) (106)
Non-deductible expenses 530 248
Non-taxable income (397) (992)
Partial tax exemption (113) (155)
Deferred tax asset not recognised 265 73
Recognition of deferred tax assets not previousiggeised (1,001) -
Utilisation of deferred tax asset previously natognised - (62)
Under / (over) provision in prior years 411 (334)
Enhanced tax credits (1,267) (417)
Others (22) (54)
Tax (benefit) / expense (303) 553

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregatemarate reconciliations for each national jucisoin.

-53-



Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

5.

Tax expense (cont'd)

Deferred taxation as at 30 June relates to theviig:

Deferred tax liabilities

Differences in depreciation
Intangible assets

Acquisition of subsidiary
Accrual for unconsumed leave
Provisions

Unutilised capital allowances
Unutilised tax losses

Deferred tax assets

Unutilised tax losses
Unutilised capital allowances
Provisions

Accrual for unconsumed leave
Differences in depreciation
Intangible assets

Consolidated balance

Consolidated statement of

sheet comprehensive income
2013 2012 2013 2012
S$°000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
(2,386) (1,510) 876 (502)
(636) (573) (48) (111)
- (114) - -
58 36 (22) 3
147 - (147) -
7 - (7) 31
188 - (188) 10
(2,622) (2,161)
1,857 533 (1,350) 20
86 8 (78) ?3)
197 405 208 124
11 40 29 (5)
(21) (197) (176) Y44
(187) (35) 152 (13)
1,943 754 (751) (490)

The directors estimate that the potential futuoeime tax

benefit at 30 June in respect of revenue tax lassebrought

to account is

The benefit will only be obtained if —

(@) the consolidated entity derives future assessalolene of a nature and of an amount sufficient @bén

the benefit to be realised;

(b) the consolidated entity continues to comply witl tonditions for deductibility imposed by tax ldgt®n;

and

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
3,293 3,663

(c) no changes in tax legislation adversely affectciresolidated entity’s ability to realise the behefi

Tax Consolidation Legislation

Zicom Group Limited and its wholly owned Australianbsidiaries have not elected to form a tax cadated

group.
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6.

7.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing thmu@s profit attributable to members of the Complpyhe

weighted average number of shares in issue dunmgear.

(a) Earnings used in calculating basic and dil@&chings per share

Net profit attributable to equity holders of tharént

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
6,929 7,836

(b) Weighted average number of shares for basiiregs per share
Effect of dilution:
Share options (d)

No. of shares (Thousands)

Adjusted weighted average number of shares

213,798 212,376
849 1,406
14,647 213,782

(c) Earnings per share

Basic
Diluted

Singapore cents

3.24 3.69
3.23 3.67

There were no transactions involving ordinary oreptial ordinary shares that would significantlyaohe
the number of the ordinary shares or potentialnaigi shares outstanding between the reportingatate

the date of completion of these financial statesent

(d) Options

Options granted to employees (including KMP) ascdieed in note 25 are considered to be potential
ordinary shares and have been included in therdetation of diluted earnings per share to the exteey
are dilutive. These options have not been includeble determination of basic earnings per share.

Dividends

Declared and paid during the financial year :

- Final unfranked dividend for 2011: 0.55 Australigents per share

- Interim unfranked dividend for 2012: 0.45 Ausiaal cents per share
- Final unfranked dividend for 2012: 0.55 Austaalicents per share
- Interim unfranked dividend for 2013: 0.45 Ausiaal cents per share

Consolidated

Proposed but not recognised as a liability as ah8@:
- Final unfranked dividend for 2013: 0.55 Australigents per share
(2012: 0.55 Australian cents per share)

2013 2012
S$000 S$'000
- 1,471
- 1,235
1,488 -
1,254 -
2,742 2,706
1,358 1,519

After the reporting date, the final dividend forl0was approved by the board of directors.
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8.

Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated

Cost
At 1.7.2011

Currency realignment
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification to inventory
Write off

Acquisition of subsidiary
Disposal of subsidiary

At 30.6.2012

Currency realignment

Additions

Disposals

Reclassification to inventory
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Reclassification to intangible assets
Reclassification

Write off

At 30.6.2013

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At 1.7.2011

Currency realignment
Charge for 2012

Disposals

Reclassification to inventory
Write off

Acquisition of subsidiary
Disposal of subsidiary

At 30.6.2012

Currency realignment

Charge for 2013

Disposals

Reclassification to inventory
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Reclassification to intangible assets
Reclassification

Write off

At 30.6.2013

Net carrying value
At 30.6.2013

At 30.6.2012

Machinery
Freehold Leasehold under Plant and Leasehold Motor
land properties Buildings installation equipment improvements vehicles Total

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
2,209 10,435 4,784 20 31,292 1,740 1,832 52,312

1 - 3 - (101) (5) (5) (207)

- - 3 78 8,243 335 93 8,752

- - - - (82) - (183) (265)

- - - - (4,860) - - (4,860)

- - - - 17) - - (17)

- - - - 19 - - 19

- - - - (119) - (352) (471)
2,210 10,435 4,790 98 34,375 2,070 1,385 55,363

42 1 91 2 (413) (15) (26) (318)

- - 11 3,579 234 410 4,234

- - - - (282) - (139) (421)

- - - - (2,312) - - (2,312)
(448) (300) - - - - (748)

- - - - (134) - - (134)

- - - - (72) 72 - -

- - - - (245) - - (245)
1,804 10,436 4,592 100 34,496 2,361 1,630 55,419

- 2,845 594 - 10,939 1,111 1,480 16,969

- - (5) - (86) 3) (7) (101)

- 270 245 - 3,381 218 111 4,225

- - - - (54) - (167) (221)

- - - - (895) - - (895)

- - - - (13) - - (13)

- - - - 15 - - 15

- - - - (107) - (342) (449)
- 3,115 834 - 13,180 1,326 1,075 19,530

- 1 16 - (281) (15) (29) (308)

- 270 243 - 3,478 273 142 4,406

- - - - (270) - (122) (392)

- - - - (528) - - (528)

- - (224) - - - - (224)

- - - - (54) - - (54)

_ — — — (1) 1 — _

- - - - (112) - (112)

- 3,386 869 - 15,412 1,585 1,066 22,318
1,804 7,050 3,723 100 19,084 776 564 33,101
2,210 7,320 3,956 98 21,195 744 310 35,833
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8. Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)
(@) The net book value of property, plant and eqpeipt held under hire purchase are as follows :-

Consolidated

2013 2012

S$'000 S$°000

Motor vehicles 240 32
Plant and equipment 5,008 4,315

5,248 4,347

Leased assets are pledged as security for theddiaance lease liabilities.

(b) During the year, the Group acquired propeaignt and equipment with an aggregate cost of 384000 (2012:
S$8,752,000) of which S$1,580,000 (2012: S$1,71),0@re acquired by means of hire purchase financin
Cash payments of S$2,320,000 (2012: S$5,740,0009 made to purchase property, plant and equipment.
Additions also included an amount of S$314,000 22@$1,266,000) which was previously included ockt
but was converted and capitalised as fixed assetsgithe current financial year. The balance $2&000
(2012: S$35,000) relates to provision for reinsteget made in the current financial year.

(c) During the financial year, the Group disposgproperty, plant and equipment with an aggregatédnok value
of S$29,000 (2012:S$44,000). Sales proceeds anmauiatiS$83,000 (2012: S$131,000) were receivedsh.c

(d) During the financial year, the Group wrote pfbperty, plant and equipment with an aggregatédaek value
of approximately S$133,000 (2012: S$4,000).

(e) The net book value of property, plant and eqpeipt pledged as security are as follows:

Consolidated

2013 2012

S$°000 S$'000

Mortgage of leasehold properties 3125 3250
Mortgage of freehold land and buildings 5,527 6,166
8,652 9,416
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9. Intangible assets

Group

Cost
At 1.7.2011
Currency realignment

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Disposal of subsidiary

At 30.6.2012

Currency realignment

Additions

Reclassification from inventory

Reclassification from property, plant & equipment
Write off

At 30.6.2013

Accumulated amortisation :
At 1.7.2011
Currency realignment

Amortisation

At 30.6.2012
Currency realignment

Amortisation
Reclassification from property, plant & equipment
At 30.6.2013

Net carrying value :
At 30 June 2013

At 30 June 2012

Customer Developed Development Club Computer Unpatented Patented
list technology Goodwill expenditure  membership software technology technology Total
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$00 S$'000 S$'000
927 1,152 6,423 - 10 1,197 3,049 - 12,758
©) ) (64) - - (11) - - (85)
- - - 37 - 83 - 31 151
- - 1,316 - - - 672 - 1,988
- - (190) - - - - - (190)
924 1,145 7,485 37 10 1,269 3,721 31 14,622
(6) “ (239) - - (40) - - (289)
- - — 1,450 - 530 - 34 2,014
- - - 324 - - - - 324
- - - - - 134 - - 134
- - - - - - - 5) (5)
918 1,141 7,246 1,811 10 1,893 3,721 60 16,800
777 804 - - - 293 127 - 2,001
- - - - - ©) - - 3)
49 171 - - - 254 232 - 706
826 975 - - - 544 359 - 2,704
- - - - - (20) - - (20)
48 166 - 37 - 325 274 - 850
- - - - - 54 - - 54
874 1,141 — 37 - 903 633 - 3,588
44 — 7,246 1,774 10 990 3,088 60 13,212
98 170 7,485 37 10 725 3,362 31 11,918
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9. Intangible assets (cont'd)

Customer Developed Computer Unpatented Patented

list technology software technology technology
Average remaining Amortisation period (years) —201 1 - 5 114 10
Average remaining Amortisation period (years) -201 2 1 2 124 10

Impairment tests for goodwill

In accordance with AASB 3, the carrying value of tBroup's goodwill on acquisition as at 30 June320as
assessed for impairment.

Basis on which

recoverable Growth rate Discount
As at As at values are per annum rate per
Group 30.6.2013 30.6.2012 determined annum
2013 2012 2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000 % % % %
Carrying value of capitalised goodwiill
based on cashenerating units
Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd 2,974 2,974 Value-in-use 8% -20% 5%-8% 16% 13%
Zicom Group Limited 2,291 2,530 Value-in-use 5% - 10% 5% -10% 18% 17%
Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd 664 664 Valuese 10% - 20%10% - 30% 16%  14%
Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd 1,316 1,316 Value-in-use 15% - 30% 15% -30% 19% 17%

7,245 7,484

Goodwill is allocated for impairment testing purpego the individual entity which is also the cggimerating
unit ("CGU").

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determinesbcan value-in-use calculations using cashflow
projections based on financial budgets approvetidryagement covering a one to five year period. adament
determined budgeted gross margin in the finanaigglets based on past performance and its expeciatftio
market development. Terminal growth rate of 1%ewnased for the above cash generating units with the
exception of Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltdviich 0% was used.

The calculations of value in use for the CGUs aostrsensitive to the following assumptions: -

Budgeted gross margins — Gross margins are basadevage values achieved in the three years prag¢ioe
start of the budget period or if unavailable, basednanagement assessment of the markets. Thesemased
over the budget period for anticipated efficientyprovements.

Growth rates — The forecasted growth rates aredbagenanagement’s assessment of the markets andtdo
exceed the long-term average growth rate for tastries relevant to the CGUs.

Pre-tax discount rates — Discount rate reflectctimeent market assessment of the risk specifibéoQGUs. In
determining appropriate discount rates for each tegard has been given to the weighted averagieofcapital
of the entity as a whole and the yield on a 15 geaernment bond at the beginning of the budgesed.y

Sensitivity to changes in assumption
Management believe that no reasonably possiblegehemany of the above key assumptions would ctuse
carrying values of these CGUs to materially exabedt recoverable amounts.

No impairment loss was required for the financieans ended 30 June 2013 and 2012 for goodwill gis th
recoverable values were in excess of their carryaiges.
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10.

Investment in subsidiaries

@)

(b)

Parent Entity

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Investment in controlled entities, at cost 54,544 54,544
Less: Impairment loss (5,921) (5,263)
48,623 49,281

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of Zicom Group Limited and the
subsidiaries listed in the following table.

The interest in each controlled entity has beensidfl to assessed recoverable amounts on thedbahisir
underlying assets.

Percentage
Name of Company Country of Carrying value of Parent of equity held by the
incorporation/ Entity Investment Group
formation
2013 2012 2013 2012
S$°000 S$'000 % %
Held by the Company:
Cesco Australia Limited Australia 4,448 5,106 100 100
Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd Singapore 44,175 44,175 100 100
Controlled entities held by subsidiary
companies:
Cesco Equipment Pty Ltd Australia - - 100 100
Zicom Pte Ltd Singapore - - 100 100
Zicom Equipment Pte Ltd Singapore - - 100 100
Foundation Associates Engineering Pte Ltd  Singapor - - 100 100
Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd Singapore - - 100 100
MTA-Sysmac Automation Pte Ltd Singapore - - 61 61
SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd Singapore - - 100 100
Integrated Automation Systems Pte Ltd Singapore - - 100 100
Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd Singapore - - 84 54
Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd Singapore - - 92 80
PT Sys-Mac Indonesia Indonesia - - 100 100
Zicom Cesco Engineering Co. Ltd Thailand - - 100 100
Zicom Cesco Thai Co. Ltd Thailand - - 100 100
Zicom Thai Hydraulics Co. Ltd Thailand - - 100 100
FA Geotech Equipment Sdn Bhd Malaysia - - 100 100
Cesco Kemajuan Sdn Bhd Malaysia - - 100 100
Hangzhou Cesco Machinery Co Ltd China - - 100 100

48,623 49,281

Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd (“Orion”)

On 3 July 2012, Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd acquiredadditional 29.74% equity interest in Orion from ritsn-
controlling interest for a cash consideration 058$000 thereby increasing the Group’s intere$iiion to
84%. The difference between the carrying valuéhefadditional interest acquired of S$624,000 aedctsh
consideration amounting to S$29,000 has been regegymithin equity.

Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd “(BBS”)

On 31 December 2012, the shareholders of the BR®wagd the transfer of 1,200,000 Profit Guarantes &
to Zicom Holdings Pte Ltd as the minimum agreeditgroould not be achieved by BBS under the Shddehs’
Agreement. This resulted in an increase in the @wointerest in BBS to 92%. The difference betwésn
carrying amount of the additional interest acquicéd5$104,000 and the value of Profit Guaranteerésha
transferred of $300,000 amounting to S$196,000ble@s recognized as premium paid on acquisitioninvith
equity.
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10. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Entity subject to class order relief

Pursuant to the Class Order 98/1418, relief has lgeanted to Cesco Australia Limited (“CAL”) and <ce
Equipment Pty Ltd (“CEPL”") from th€orporations AcR001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgem
of their financial reports.

As a condition for the Class Order, a deed of C@sarantee was executed between Zicom Group Limited
(“ZGL") and CAL on 15 May 2008. The effect of tdeed is that ZGL has guaranteed to pay any defigian

the event of winding up of CAL or if CAL does noest its obligations under the terms of overdrafink, leases

or other liabilities subject to the guarantee.

CAL also has given a similar guarantee in the ettt ZGL is wound up or if it does not meet itdigétions
under the terms of overdraft, loans and leasesher diabilities subject to the guarantee.

On 9 May 2013, CEPL executed a Deed of Assumptiidm AGL so that CEPL is joined to the Deed of Cross
Guarantee and assumes liability under and be bbyritle Deed of Cross Guarantee as if CEPL was apsro
Entity when the deed of Cross Guarantee was exiécute

The consolidated Income Statement and Balance $hdst entities that are members of the ClosediGare

as follows:
Consolidated Income Statement Closed Group
2013 2012
S$'000 S$°000
Profit from continuing activities before taxation , 727 3,250
Income tax expense - -
Net profit for the year 2,707 3,250
Accumulated losses at the beginning (24,537) (29,08
Expiry of employee share options 136 -
Dividends paid (2,742) (2,706)
Accumulated losses at the end (24,436) (24,537)
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10. Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets

Cash and bank balances
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Current liabilities
Payables
Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

NET ASSETS

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Compary

Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

11. Investmentin an associate

(@) Investment details

Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Closed Group

(b) Movements in the carrying amount of the Group’sstment in an associate

At beginning of year

Additional investment

Share of losses after income tax
Unrealised profits

At end of year

-62 -

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
1,644 2,251
593 742
44,175 44,175
46,412 47,168
1,776 1,605
3,239 3,692
5,662 7,717
10,677 13,014
6,969 8,977
1,434 2,812
240 229
8,643 12,018
2,034 996
10 91
220 194
230 285
48,216 47,879
71,631 71,091
1,021 1,325
(24,436) (24,537)
48,216 47,879
Consolidated
2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
2,578 2,768
2013 2012
S$°000 S$'000
2,768 2,007
453 1,451
(613) (674)
(30) (16)
2,578 2,768
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11. Investment in an associate (cont'd)
(b) Movements in the carrying amount of the Groupigstment in associate (cont’d)

In the last financial year, Zicom Holdings Pte I(tdAHPL") subscribed for 171,586 Rights Shares parguo
the renounceable Rights Issue of Curiox, at areipsice of S$5.28 per Right Share payable in 2ldcareches.
Consideration for the two tranches amounting to58%100 each had been paid in April 2012 and Sepemb
2012 respectively.

With the additional investment, ZHPL'’s equity irgst in Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd has increase®btd3%o
as at 30 June 2013 (2012: 44.06%).

On 18 January 2013, Curiox issued 919,000 convefiilan stocks with cumulative interest at 5% pern
to ZHPL for a cash consideration of S$919,000. el be either repaid or redeemed by Curiox elyuath

2 maturity dates, 31 December 2014 and 31 Dece@®#5. ZHPL holds the right to convert these into
preference shares in Curiox on these 2 maturitysdat

(c) Summarised financial information
The following table illustrates summarised finahaidormation relating to the Group’s associate:

Extract from the associate’s balance sheet:

2013 2012
S$'000 S$°000
Current assets 1,257 1,137
Non-current assets 537 560
1,794 1,697
Current liabilities (1,666) (772)
Net assets 128 925
Extract from the associate’s statement of cormgmsive income:
Results :
2013 2012
S$'000 S$’000
Revenue 500 133
Net losses (1,263) (1,600)

12. Inventories
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Raw materials, at net realisable value 2,002 2,844
Raw materials, at cost 2,392 2,020
Work-in-progress, at cost 6,722 9,925
Trading stocks, at cost 9,902 12,735
Trading stocks, at net realisable value 296 296
Stocks-in-transit, at cost 515 435
Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisalalue 21,829 28,255

Inventories recognised as cost of sales for the gealed 30 June 2013 totalled S$83,289,000 (2012:
S$99,144,000) for the Group.
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13. Current Assets - Receivables
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Trade receivables (a) 23,827 26,150
Allowance for impairment loss (b) (317) (374)
23,510 25,776
Advance payments to suppliers 1,006 677
Amount due from customers for contract work (nete 1 8,743 4,554
Deposits 158 207
Related party receivables (c) :
- Associate
- trade 155 -
- non-trade 109 457
- Other related parties (trade) 125 13
Other receivables 1,026 1,485
34,832 33,169

(a) Please refer to note 21 for the ageing analysisade receivables past due but not impaired.

(b) Allowance for impairment loss
Trade and other receivables are non-interest lgpand are generally due when invoiced or on 30td#ys
term. An allowance for impairment loss is recogdisenen there is objective evidence that an indizidu
receivable is impaired.

The group has trade and other receivables thatgr@red at the balance sheet date and the moveroétite
allowance accounts used to record the impairmenasufollows:

Consolidated
individually impaired

Trade receivables Non-trade receivables

2013 2012 2013 2012

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Nominal amounts 317 374 26 26
Less : allowance for impairment (317) (374) (26) (26)
Movements in allowance accounts :
As at 1 July 374 141 26 -
Charge for the year 1 281 - 26
Written off (55) (40) - -
Write back (2) (20) - -
Currency realignment (2) 2 - -
As at 30 June 317 374 26 26

(c) For related party receivables, please refer to Bdtfor terms and conditions.

(d) Due to the short-term nature of these receivatiies;, carrying value is assumed to approximate fla@ivalue.
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14. Gross amount due from/(to) customers for contract wrk
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Contract costs incurred to date 14,994 17,889
Recognised profits to date 4,712 2,198
19,706 20,087
Progress billings and advances (13,410) (18,815)
Amount due from customers for contract work, net 296, 1,272
Gross amount due from customers for contract wooke( 13) 8,743 4,554
Gross amount due to customers for contract worte(ti6) (2,447) (3,282)
6,296 1,272
Advances received included in gross amount duestomers for
contract work - 1,330

Revenue recognised on projects is disclosed infote

15. Financial asset recorded at fair value through prat or loss
This arose from a contractual right held by Zicooidihgs Pte Ltd (“ZHPL") to receive Profit Guaraat8hares from
the non-controlling shareholders of Biobot Surgietéé Ltd (“BBS”) if BBS do not achieve the minimuagreed
profits by 30 June 2013.

A gain from fair value adjustment of these ProfitaBantee Shares amounting to S$800,000 was reedgnithe last
financial year.

On 31 December 2012, the shareholders of the BRp&waged the transfer of 1,200,000 Profit Guarantear&s to
ZHPL as the minimum agreed profits could not beéexadd. Please see note 10 for details.
16. Current Liabilities - Payables

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Trade, other payables and accruals (a) 18,221 28,209
Amount due to customers for contract work (note 14) 2,447 3,282
Owing to related parties (b)
- trade 26 25
- non-trade 53 31
20,747 31,547

(@) All amounts are non-interest bearing and are ndymsettled on 30 to 90-day terms.

(b) Related parties
For related parties’ payable, please refer to @8téor terms and conditions.

(c) Due to the short-term nature of these payables;ahging value is assumed to approximate itsviaiue.
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17. Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000

Current
Bank overdraft (a) 153 205
Bills payable (b) 2,817 2,342
Factory loan (c) 611 585
Machinery loan (d) 239 366
Invoice finance facility (e) 1,311 3,217
Term loan (f) 2,380 2,332
Lease liabilities (note 27) 1,948 1,378

9,459 10,425
Nor-Current
Factory loan (c) 1,236 1,847
Machinery loan (d) - 244
Term loan (f) 2,504 2,784
Lease liabilities (note 27) 1,407 1,660

5,147 6,535

Details of the secured borrowings are as follows:

(@) Overdraft of S$153,000 (2012: S$205,000) which ®é&aterest at 7.50% (2012: 7.50%) per annum isredcu
by a mortgage of the subsidiary company’s freelantd and buildings at Chonburi, Thailand.

(b) Bill payable amounting to S$2,817,000 (2012: S$2,340) with an average maturity of 2.5 — 4 mong&le:
3 - 4 months) bears interest at 2.17% to 2.34%232P1.5% to 7.50%) per annum. All bill payableseveecured
by a corporate guarantee given by ZHPL.

(c) Factory loans amounting to S$1,031,000 (2012: $81000) which is made up of current and long-teomtipns
of S$240,000 (2012: S$220,000) and S$791,000 (2&HA;,046,000) respectively is repayable over the
remaining 50 monthly instalments at fixed intemade of 1.75% (2012: 1.45%) per annum. It is seddoy a
legal mortgage on ZHPL's leasehold property at Blofuas Avenue 9 Singapore 639198 and a corporate
guarantee from the Company.

The remaining factory loan amounting to %800 (2012: S$1,166,000) which is made up ofexurand non-
current portions of S$371,000 (2012: S$365,000) 3$445,000 (2012: S$801,000) respectively is rdpaya
over the remaining 26 monthly instalments at aargdt rate of 4.13% (2012: 5.25%) per annum. $eured
by a legal mortgage of the subsidiary company’stfcdd land and buildings at 700/895 Moo 2, Amat&adya
Industrial Estate, Chonburi, Thailand and a corgogaiarantee from ZHPL.

(d) Machinery loan due within the next 12 months amimgnto S$156,000 (2012: S$374,000 made up of cturren
portion: S$221,000; non-current portion: S$153,00€4rs interest at 4.13% (2012: 5.25%) per annuwhisn
secured by a legal mortgage on the subsidiary copméreehold land and buildings at 700/895 Mod\Bata
Nakorn Industrial Estate, Chonburi, Thailand armbgoorate guarantee from ZHPL.

The remaining machinery loan also due within theti® months amounting to S$83,000 (2012: S$236,000
made up of current portion: S$145,000; non-curpantion: S$91,000) bears interest at a fixed rate.e2%
(2012: 8.62%) per annum and is secured by a fixetifidating charge over all the assets of CescarAlis
Limited (“CAL").

(e) Invoice finance facility amounting to S$1,311,00®12: S$2,667,000) which bears floating interest &t
5.88% to 6.64% (2012: 6.80% to 7.90%) is secured fiyed and floating charge over all the asselGAI.

As at 30 June 2012, invoice finance facility aminmto S$550,000 which bore interest at 2.46% peuen
was secured by a corporate guarantee given by ZHPL.
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17. Interest-Bearing Liabilities (cont'd)

(f) Term loans amounting to S$4,402,000 (2012: S$5008%, comprising current and long-term portions of
S$1,898,000 (2012: S$2,272,000) and S$2,504,002(28%$2,784,000) respectively bears floating irsest
1.45% to 2.38% (2012: 2.45% to 2.70%) per annurepayable over 3 to 5 years and secured by a cgor
guarantee given by ZHPL.

The remaining term loan payable within 12 monthsamting to S$482,000 (2012: S$60,000) bears intates
5.50% (2012: 4.25%) per annum and is secured bga mortgage on the subsidiary company’s freelzoid
and buildings at 700/895 Moo 2, Amata Nakorn IndakEstate, Chonburi, Thailand and a corporatagantae
from ZHPL.

(g) Financing facilities available
As at 30 June 2013, the Group had available S$08&)Q0 (2012: S$108,785,000) of undrawn committed
borrowing facilities and all bank covenants werenptied with.

18. Provisions
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Current
Product warranties 927 1,061
Employee benefits 211 187
1,138 1,248
Non-Current
Employee benefits 246 201
Reinstatement costs 197 183
443 384

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$°000 S$'000
Movements in provision for warranties
At beginning of year 1,061 1,243
Allowance for the year 862 418
Write back of allowance (815) (309)
Utilisation (183) (314)
Acquisition of subsidiary - 23
Currency realignment 2 -
At end of year 927 1,061
Warranty expense written-off directly to profitloss 55
(note 4)
Movements in provision for employee benefits
At beginning of year 388 293
Allowance for the year 105 105
Currency realignment (36) (10)
At end of year 457 388
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18. Provisions (cont'd)
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$°000 S$'000
Movements in provision for reinstatement cc
At beginning of year 183 148
Allowance for the year 20 35
Currency realignment (6) -
At end of year 197 183

In accordance with the lease agreement, the Graigh rainstate certain subsidiaries’ leased preniis&mngapore

and Australia to its original condition at the esfdhe lease term.

An additional provision of S$20,000 (2012: S$35)0@@s raised during the year ended 30 June 20dsspect of
the Group’s obligation to remove leasehold improgeta from the leased premises in Singapore amtlisded in

the carrying amount of leasehold improvements.

Because of the long-term nature of liability, theajest uncertainty in estimating the provisiothis costs that will
ultimately be incurred. The provision has beeruwated using a pre-tax discount rate of 6%.

19. Contributed equity

(@) Share Capital

Parent Entity Consolidated
2013 2012 2013 2012
No. of shares (Thousands) S$'000 S$'000
Ordinary fully paid shares 214,752 212,452 33,6 37,083

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recelivédends as and when declared by the Company. All

ordinary shares carry one vote per share withaiticgon.

(b) Movements in ordinary share capital

Company Group
Number of
ordinary shares

(Thousands) S$'000
At 1 July 2011 212,159 36,983
Issue of shares under Zicom Employee Share and®ptan(i) 293 100
At 30 June 2012 212,452 37,083
Issue of shares under Zicom Employee Share ana®ptan(i) 517 189
Issue of shares in lieu of cash performance b@ijus 1,783 351
At 30 June 2013 214,752 37,623

(i) Issue of shares under Zicom Employee Share an@®ptan (“ZESOP”)

On 4 October 2011, the Company issued and all@®3d000 ordinary shares, fully paid at A$0.18 per
share, under the ZESOP. Such shares rap&egassuwith the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

On 8 October 2012, 24 October 2012 and 4 March 2018 Company issued and allotted a total of
517,000 ordinary shares, fully paid at A$0.18 s, under the ZESOP. Such shares rapkedassu

with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.
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19.

Contributed equity (cont'd)

(i) Issue of shares in lieu of cash performance bonus
On 21 November 2012, the board approved the issdi@liotment of 430,000 shares to executives, fully
paid at A$0.155 per share, as part payment of gegformance bonus for the year ended 30 June 2012.
Such shares rankegxhri passuwith the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ meeting on 13 Nove2®k2, 888,000, 195,000 and 270,000 shares were
allotted to Messrs Giok Lak Sim, Kok Hwee Sim anakkYew Sim respectively, fully paid at A$0.155
per share as part payment of their performancedfmihe year ended 30 June 2012. Such sharesdank
pari passuwith the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Cash at bank and in hand 19,956 21,455
Short-term fixed deposits 1,399 2,991
21,355 24,446

For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash astdl @quivalents comprise the following as at 3@Jun

Cash and short-term deposits 21,355 24,446
Bank overdrafts (153) (205)
21,202 24,241

Cash at bank balance amounting to S$2,312,000 (8¥3123,000) as at 30 June 2013 earned inteérfshing
rate based on daily bank deposit rates ranging28% to 2.73% (2012: 1.01% to 3.80%) per annume Th
remaining cash at bank balances are non-interasinige

Short-term deposits are made for varying periodsrad day to 3 months depending on the immediate cas
requirements of the Group, and earn interestseatebpective short-term rates.

21. Financial instruments

@

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and peslici

The Group and the Company is exposed to finanwsiks rarising from its operations and the use ddirfirial
instruments. The key financial risks include creik, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fogei currency risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees poliar@sprocedures for the management of these ridies Group
enters into derivative transactions, principallyefgn currency forward contracts and foreign curyeoptions,
purpose is to manage currency risk arising from@heup’s operations and sources of finance. Thei@adpes
not apply hedge accounting for such derivatives.

The following sections provide details regarding @roup's exposure to the above-mentioned finariskd and
the objectives, policies and processes for the gemant of these risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valrefuture cash flows of the Group’s financial instrents will
fluctuate because of changes in market interess rat

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arisesgily from loans and borrowings which have fiogtinterest
rates. The Group’s policy with respect to coningllthis risk is linked to a regular review of thaal debt
position and assessment of the impact of adveraeges in interest rates applicable to new andiegistebt
facilities. Consideration is given to potentiahesval of existing positions, alternative financirternative
hedging positions and mix of fixed and variablersst rates.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)

(b)

(©

Interest rate risk (cont'd)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the folpwix of financial assets and liabilities exposedariable
interest rate risk:
Consolidated

2013 2012

S$'000 S$'000
Financial asset
Cash and bank balances 2,312 3,123
Financial liabilities
Bank overdraft 153 205
Invoice finance facility 1,311 2,667
Factory loans 816 1,166
Machinery loans 156 374
Term loan 4,402 5,056

6,838 9,468

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2013, if interest rates had incrédsetkased by 25 basis point with all other vaeshield
constant, post-tax profits for the consolidatedterior the financial year would be (S$10,000)/S¥8) (2012:
(S$12,000)/S$12,000) lower/higher, as a resulthef liigher/lower interest rates. Accordingly, the@'s
equity as at year-end will be (S$10,000)/S$9,000122 (S$12,000)/S$12,000) lower/higher. Term loans
amounting to S$482,000 (2012: S$60,000) have firégtest rates until expiry, at which point inteérestes
resets.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk occurs as a result of theugtransactions that are not denominated in tespective
functional currencies. These transactions ar@® fthe Group's ordinary course of business. TheGiransacts
business in various currencies and as a restdi,gsly exposed to movements in exchange ratesinédl States
dollars, Sterling pounds, Euros and Australianatsll

The Group manages its foreign exchange exposur fglicy of matching, as far as possible, recegrtd
payments in each individual currency. The Growgo alses foreign currency forward contracts andigare
currency options to hedge a portion of its futueeign exchange exposure. The Group uses thesencyr
contracts purely as a hedging tool and does netgakitions in currencies with a view to make sjsue gains
from currency movements.

The following sensitivity analysis is based onfilieign exchange risk exposure in existence ab#ifence sheet
date. As at 30 June, if exchange rates had mosgeitlustrated in the table below, with all otheriabdles held
constant, post tax profit and equity would havenbeféected as follows:

Post tax profit
Higher/(lower)

2013 2012

Consolidated S$°000 S$°000
USD

- strengthened 3% (2012: 3%) 300 255

- weakened 2% (2012: 3%) (200) (255)
EUROS

- strengthened 4% (2012: 3%) (5) Q)

- weakened 3% (2012:3%) 4 1
AUD

- strengthened 3% (2012: 1%) 67 34

- weakened 7% (2012: 1%) (157) (34)
GBP

- strengthened 5% (2012: 3%) 4) (12)

- weakened 3% (2012: 3%) 3 11
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21.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise amtstanding financial instruments should a countgypiefault on
its obligations. The Group’s exposure to credik mrises primarily from trade and other receivable

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revegmvth while minimising losses incurred due to eased
credit risk exposure. The Group trades only wehognised and creditworthy third parties. Credik iis
monitored through careful selection of customers their balances are monitored on an ongoing bétisthe
result that the Group’s exposure of bad debts babeen significant.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentration of credit rigkrmnitoring the country profile of its trade recables on
an on-going basis. The credit risk concentratiafile of the Group’s trade receivables at the be¢asheet date
is as follows:

2013 2012

S$'000 % of total S$'000 % of total
Austria 201 0.8% - -
Australia 3,290 14.0% 5,288 20.5%
Bangladesh 1,381 5.9% 3,459 13.4%
Hong Kong 160 0.7% 279 1.1%
India - - 3 -
Indonesia 134 0.6% 61 0.2%
Malaysia 5,593 23.8% 2,301 8.9%
People’s Republic of China 3,159 13.4% 494 1.9%
Singapore 5,954 25.3% 8,910 34.6%
Thailand 2,250 9.6% 1,519 5.9%
United States of America 1,290 5.5% 3,363 13.1%
Vietnam 58 0.2% - -
Others 40 0.2% 99 0.4%

23,510 100% 25,776 100%

At the balance sheet date, approximately 63.3%2289%.8%) of the Group’s trade receivables were fdua
18 (2012: 15) major customers.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor iirgzh
Trade and other receivables that are neither pasndr impaired are creditworthy debtors with gpagment
record with the Group. Cash and short term depasé placed with reputable banks.

Included in trade receivables as at 30 June 208B)F000 (2012: S$2,506,000) are arranged to lledeia
letters of credit issued by reputable banks in tiesiwhere the customers are based.

Financial assets that are past due but not impaired
As at 30 June 2013, the ageing analysis of trackvables is as follows:

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Less than 30 days 6,723 4,192
30 to 60 days 4,258 1,752
61 to 90 days 992 1,326
91 to 120 days 260 1,162
More than 120 days 2,711 3,756
14,944 12,188

Financial assets that are impaired
Please refer to note 13 for details.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)

(e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will engoter difficulty in meeting financial obligationsid to shortage
of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risksas primarily from mismatches of the maturitiedinfncial

assets and liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance ketwcontinuity of funding and flexibility throughe use of

stand-by credit facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity profifehe Group’s financial assets and liabilitieshet balance
sheet date based on contractual undiscounted paym&he expected timing of actual cash flows fibese

financial instruments may differ.

Consolidated

2013

Financial assets:

Trade receivables

Other receivables
Investment securities
Loan receivable

Cash and bank balances

Total undiscounted financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables

Other payables

Unrealised loss on derivatives
Loans and borrowings

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

Total net undiscounted financial
assets/(liabilities)

Consolidated

2012

Financial assets:

Trade receivables

Other receivables
Investment securities
Cash and bank balances

Total undiscounted financial assets

Financial liabilities:

Trade payables

Other payables

Unrealised loss on derivatives
Loans and borrowings

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

Total net undiscounted financial
assets/(liabilities)

6 months 7t012 After 1 year 5to 10 Total
or less months  but not more years
than 5 years
S$'000 S$°000 S$°000 S$000 S$'000
23,790 - - - 23,790
471 295 - - 766
- - 1 - 1
- - 1,031 - 1,031
21,355 — — — 21,355
45,616 295 21,03 - 46,943
8,138 - - - 8,138
6,216 1,283 443 - 7,942
2,411 - - - 2,411
7,821 1,883 5,370 — 15,074
24,586 1686 5,813 - 33,565
21,030 (2,871) (4,781) - 13,378
25,776 - - - 25,776
545 139 - - 684
- - 1 - 1
24,446 - - — 24,446
50,767 139 1 — 50,907
12,409 - - - 12,409
7,092 986 134 183 8,395
497 - - - 497
8,373 2,397 6,754 29 17,553
28,371 333 6,888 212 38,854
22,396 (3,244) (6,887) (212) 12,053
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)
(f)  Derivative financial instruments
(i) Fair value of financial instruments thate carried at fair value

Quoted prices in  Significant

active markets other Significant
for identical observable  unobservable
instruments inputs inputs Total

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Group
2013
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale 1 - - 1
At 30 June 2013 1 - - 1
Financial liabilities:
Derivatives — foreign currency options - 2,411 - 2,411
At 30 June 2013 - 2,411 - 2,411
2012
Financial assets:
Available-for-sale 1 - - 1
Derivatives (unquoted) - - 300 300
At 30 June 2012 1 - 300 301
Financial liabilities:
Derivatives — foreign currency options - 497 - 497

At 30 June 2012 - 497 - 497

Fair value hierarchy

The Group classify fair value measurement usingiravilue hierarchy that reflects the significané¢he
inputs used in making the measurements. The faievserarchy have the following levels:

= Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active reexrkor identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices includitiin Level 1 that are observable for the asset o
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or imectly (i.e., derived from prices), and

= Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability tha¢ aot based on observable market data (unobservabl
inputs).

Quoted market price represents the fair value deted based on quoted prices on active marketstas a
reporting date without any deduction for transactiosts. The fair value of the listed equity innesihts are
based on quoted market prices.

For financial instruments not quoted in active neéskthe Group uses valuation techniques suchessmmir
value techniques, comparison to similar instrumédatsvhich market observable prices exist and other
relevant models used by market participants. Thedeation techniques use both observable and
unobservable market inputs.

Financial instruments that use valuation techniquigs only observable market inputs or unobservable
inputs that are not significant to the overall \aian include foreign exchange contracts not aecagnised
exchange.

There were no transfers between level 1 and ledeirihg the financial years 2013 and 2012.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)
(f)  Derivative financial instruments (cont'd)
0] Fair value of financial instruments thate carried at fair value (cont’d)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value movements

2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000
Opening balance 300 -
Total gains or losses
in other comprehensive income - -
in profit or loss - 300
Reclassified to investment in subsidiary (300) -
Ending balance - 300

The Group uses the discounted cashflow methodtermi@ing the fair value of unquoted derivative.

(i) Fair value of financial instruments by classes thet¢ not carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amadrtash and short-term deposits, current trade
and other receivables, current trade and otherbpegacurrent interest-bearing liabilities reasdyab
approximate their fair values because they arelgnsisort-term in nature and repriced frequently.

(i)  Fair value of financial instruments by classes theg not carried at fair value and whose carrying
amounts are not reasonable approximation of faluga

The fair values of non-current finance lease ligbdnd bank loans, which are not carried at falue

in the balance sheet, is presented in the followadde. The fair value is estimated using discednt
cash flow analysis, based on current incrementadiitey rates for similar types of lending and
borrowing arrangements.

Carrying Amount Fair Value
2013 2012 2013 2012
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Financial liabilities :
Obligations under finance leases 1,407 1,660 1,356 1,581
Bank loans 3,740 4,875 3,405 4,456

22. Capital Management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capétab ensure that it maintains a strong credibhgaand healthy
capital ratios in order to support its businessmadimise shareholders’ value. Management alss tormaintain a
capital structure that ensures the lowest cosapital available to the entity.

Management is constantly adjusting the capitalctre to take advantage of favourable costs oftabapi higher
returns on assets. As the market is constantlypgihg and after taking into account the Group’s amgion
requirements, management may adjust the dividegth@ats to shareholders, return capital to sharehns|dssue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Management monitors capital through the gearinip r@tet debt / total capital). The Group define$ debts as
interest-bearing liabilities less cash and caslivetgnts. Capital includes equity attributablehe equity holders of
the Company and reserves. The Group’s policy ketp its gearing ratio at less than 50%.

The gearing ratios as at 30 June 2013 and 30 Jutiz ®Rere 0% as cash and cash equivalents exceetbedst-

bearing liabilities.
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23. Related party disclosures
Parties are considered to be related if one patytiine ability to control the other party or exeedignificant influence
over the other party in making financial and opiegatiecisions.
In addition to the related party information diss#d elsewhere in the financial statements, thevidtly are
transactions with related parties at mutually agiteems and amounts:

(@) Sale and purchase of goods and services
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$°000 S$°000

Minority shareholder of a subsidiary company

- Sales 261 284

- Purchases 241 46
Associates

- Sales 161 137

- Interest income 34 32

- Rental & utilities income 145 33

- Secretarial fees 24 18
Other related parties

-Sales 27 12

- Purchases - 22

- Commission paid 35 28

(b) Terms and conditions of transactions witlated parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are atatm’s length basis at normal market pricescamigormal
commercial terms.

Loan receivable from Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd (fi8x") amounting to $919,000 (2012: S$nil) earnteiest
at 5% per annum. These will be either repaid deeened by Curiox equally on 2 maturity dates, 3debeber
2014 and 31 December 2015. Zicom Holdings Ptehblds the right to convert these into preferena@eshin
Curiox on these 2 maturity dates.

As at 30 June 2012, advances amounting to S$453v@0® given to Curiox which bears interest at 5086
annum. This advance has been applied against payanghe Right Shares due in September 2012.

Outstanding non-trade balances as at year-endot¥itir related parties are unsecured, interestafneehave no
fixed terms of repayment. For information regagdioutstanding balance on related party receivahies
payables at year-end, please refer to notes 13@&nd

(c) Directors and key management personnel

Disclosures are set out in note 24.

24. Key Management Personnel

(@) Details of Key Management Personnel

(i) Directors

G L Sim (Chairman and Managing Director)

K H Sim (Executive Director)

K'Y Sim (Alternate director to K H Sim)
Y P Lim (Independent)

F Leong (Independent)

I R Millard (Independent)
S P Sze (Independent)

(i) Executives

G H Teoh (Managing Director of Foundation Assoddagineering Pte Ltd)
J Koon Sim (President of Sys-Mac Automation EngiimeePte Ltd)
JL Sim (Joint Managing Director of Zicom Pte Ltd)

H S Tang (Joint Managing Director of Zicom Pte)Ltd
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24. Key Management Personnel (cont'd)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Consolidated

2013 2012
S$ S$
Short-term employee benefits 3,057,806 2,898,179
Post-employment benefits 67,875 54,129
Share-based payments 18,904 332,468
Total compensation 3,144,585 3,284,776
Shareholdings of key management personnel
30 June 2013
Directors Balance as at Granted as Options Net change Balance as at
1 July 2012 remuneration exercised other 30 June 2013
G L Sim 76,085,212 887,883 - 501,273 77,474,368
K H Sim 1,062,846 195,334 - - 1,258,180
K'Y Sim 800,717 269,536 - - 1,070,253
Y P Lim 438,000 - 50,000 - 488,000
F Leong 426,344 - 50,000 48,020 524,364
I R Millard 542,250 - 50,000 - 592,250
S P Sze - - - - -
Executives
G H Teoh 50,000 - - - 50,000
J Koon Sim 20,091,937 - - - 20,091,937
JLSim 6,407,767 - - - 6,407,767
H S Tang 2,470,699 - - - 2,470,699
108,375,772 1,352,753 150,000 549,293 110,427,818
30 June 2012
Directors Balance as at Granted as Options Net change Balance as at
1 July 2011 remuneration exercised other 30 June 2012
G L Sim 73,785,212 - - 2,300,000 76,085,212
K H Sim 1,062,846 - - - 1,062,846
K'Y Sim 800,717 - - - 800,717
Y P Lim 438,000 - - - 438,000
F Leong 258,750 - - 167,594 426,344
I R Millard 542,250 - - - 542,250
S P Sze - - - - -
Executives
G H Teoh 50,000 - - - 50,000
J Koon Sim 20,091,937 - - - 20,091,937
JLSim 6,407,767 - - - 6,407,767
H S Tang 2,636,464 - - (165,765) 2,470,699
106,073,943 — — 2,301,829 108,375,772
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24. Key Management Personnel (cont'd)

(d) Option holdings of key management personnel

30 June 2013

Balance at Balance at  Value of
1 July Options 30 June options Not
2012 Granted exercised Expired 2013 granted Exercisable  Exercisable
Directors
G L Sim - - - - - - - -
K H Sim 300,000 80,000 - - 380,000 8,696 300,000 80,000
KY Sim 300,000 80,000 — — 380,000 8,696 300,000 80,000
Y P Lim 75,000 - (50,000) - 25,000 - 25,000 -
F Leong 75,000 - (50,000) - 25,000 - 25,000 -
| R Millard 75,000 - (50,000) - 25,000 - 25,000 -
S P Sze 30,000 - - - 30,000 - 30,000 -
Executives
G H Teoh 200,000 80,000 - - 280,000 8,757 200,000 80,000
J Koon Sim - - - - - - - -
JL Sim 400,000 80,000 - (200,000) 280,000 8,757 200,000 80,000
H S Tang 300,000 80,000 - (200,000) 280,000 8,757 200,000 80,000
1,755,000 400,000 (150,000) (300,000) 1,705,000 43,663 1,305,000 400,000
30 June 2012
Balance at Balance at Value of
1 July Options 30 June options Not
2011 Granted exercised Expired 2012 granted Exercisable  Exercisable
Directors
G L Sim - - - - - - - -
K HSim 300,000 - - - 300,000 - 200,000 100,000
K'Y Sim 300,000 - - - 300,000 - 200,000 100,000
Y P Lim 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 50,000 25,000
F Leong 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 50,000 25,000
I R Millard 75,000 - - - 75,000 - 50,000 25,000
S P Sze 30,000 - - - 30,000 - 15,000 15,000
Executives
G H Teoh 200,000 - - - 200,000 - 100,000 100,000
J Koon Sim - - - - - - - -
JL Sim 400,000 - - - 400,000 - 300,000 100,000
H S Tang 300,000 — - — 300,000 - 200,000 100,000
1,755,000 - - - 1,755,000 - 1,165,000 590,000

The above options were granted under the

shareholders on 23 November 2006. Please refasteo25 for more information.

(e) There were no loans made to key management peldontiee Group during the year.

25. Share-based payment plans

@

Recognised share-based payment expenses

Zicom &yepl Share and Option Plan which was approved by

The expense recognised for employee services exteiuring the year for equity-settled share-basgungnt
transactions amounted to S$173,000 (2012: S$23B,00tere have been no cancellations or modificatio
the plan during the years 2013 and 2012.
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25. Share-based payment plans (cont'd)
(b) Description of the share-based payment plan.
Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan (“ZESOP”)
Share options are granted to employees as an ine¢otetain experience and attract talent. UtldeZESOP,
the exercise price of the options approximatesrtaeket price of the shares on the grant dates.|dy®es must

remain in service for a period of 1 to 3 years.

Should an employee leave the company or resign figroffice, any vested options not exercised pdhat
date will be lost except for exceptional circumsgssuch as death or physical or mental incapacity.

The contractual life of each option granted isy&&rs. There are no cash-settlement alternatives.

(c) Outstanding number of options granted under ZESOP

2013 2012
(Thousands) (Thousands)
Outstanding at beginning of the year 6,375 6,888
Granted during the year 2,610 -
Forfeited during the year (155) (220)
Expired during the year (1,278) -
Exercised during the year (517) (293)
Outstanding at end of year 7,035 6,375
The outstanding balance as at 30 June 2013 isseel by:
No. of options (Thousands) Exercise price Exeasable Expiry Date
on or after
2013 2012 (Australian Cents)
- 495 28 1/6/2010 31/5/2013
- 828 28 1/6/2011 31/5/2013
100 100 28 28/8/2010 27/8/2013
175 175 28 28/8/2011 27/8/2013
163 163 28 1/5/2012 30/4/2015
162 162 28 1/5/2013 30/4/2015
1,685 1,790 18 1/10/2011 30/9/2015
1,710 2,082 18 1/10/2012 30/9/2015
215 290 18 15/11/2011 14/11/2015
215 290 18 15/11/2012 14/11/2015
1,225 - 17 1/9/2013 31/8/2015
1,225 - 17 1/9/2014 31/8/2015
80 - 17 15/11/2013 14/11/2015
80 — 17 15/11/2014 14/11/2015
7,035 6,375

(d) Weighted average fair value
The weighted average fair value of options grametie current financial year was A$0.09 (2012: #&)n

(e) The weighted average share price duringén®d of exercise is A$0.22 (2012: A$0.26).
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25. Share-based payment plans (cont'd)

(f)  Option pricing model
The fair value of the equity-settled share optigrented under the ZESOP is estimated as at theoflgiant
using a Trinomial model taking into account therteiand conditions upon which the options were gantThe
following table lists the inputs to the model usedthe share options granted in the current firgryear:

2013
Exercise price (A$): 0.17
Stock price at grant date (A3): 0.21
Maximum option life in years: 3
Volatility: 65.5%
Risk free interest rate 3.5%

The effects of early exercise have been incorpdriate the calculations by defining the conditiamsler which
employees are expected to exercise their optides asting in terms of the stock price reachirgpecified
multiple of the exercise price, which is not neeggsndicative of exercise patterns that may odcthe future.

26. Commitments
(@) Commitments
As at year-end, the Group has the following comreitts:
(i) Issued letters of credit amounting to S$6,435,@012: S$196,000).
(ii) Issued letters of guarantee amounting to S$6,3802012: S$7,133,000).

(i) The Group has entered into foreign exchange buyacts amounting to S$30,939,000 (2012: S$315,000).

(iv) The Group has entered into foreign exchange safitracts amounting to S$20,269,000 (2012:
S$24,652,000).

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group has entered into commercial leases ®oudfe of leasehold properties and office equiprasréssee.

These leases have an average of 3 to 30 yearse &g no restrictions placed upon the Group bgrang into
these leases.

Future minimum lease payments for the leases &i@law/s:
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$'000 S$°000
Within 1 year 2,299 2,406
Within 2 - 5 years 3,430 5,064
More than 5 years 5,426 5,212
11,155 12,682

The amount of operating lease payments recognsead axpense in the year ended 30 June 2013 75200
(2012: S$2,448,000).
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26. Commitments (cont'd)
(c) Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for certain itemdaft@and equipment and motor vehicles. Future nmimn
lease payment under finance leases together wibept value of the net minimum lease payments @re a

follows:
Minimum Present value Minimum Present value
payments of payments payments of payments
Consolidated 2013 2013 2012 2012
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Due within one year 2,047 1,948 1,460 1,378
After one year but not more
than five years 1,482 1,407 1,762 1,660
Total minimum lease payments 3,529 3,355 3,222 3,038
Less : amounts representing
finance charges A74) - (184) -
3,355 3,355 3,038 3,038

(d) Capital commitments

The Group has no capital commitment as at 30 JOh8 and 30 June 2012.

27. Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the following fees were paid/ gagdor services provided by auditors:
Consolidated

2013 2012
S$ S$

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernsb&ng(Australia
- Audit or review of financial statements 145,953 155,720
Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernsb&ny (Singpore)
- Audit or review of financial statements 208,000 198,938
Amounts received or due and receivable by otheit ditich
- Audit or review of financial statements 24,487 26,157
- Taxation services 13,614 12,746

392,054 393,561

-80 -



Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(In Singapore dollars)

28. Parent entity disclosures

(@) The individual financial statements of the parenrtttg shows the following aggregate amounts:

2013 2012

S$'000 S$'000
Balance sheet of the parent entity at year end
Non-current assets 48,623 49,281
Current assets 2,869 1,841
Total assets 51,492 51,122
Current liabilities 50 118
Total liabilities 50 118
Net Assets 51,442 51,004
Total equity of the parent entity comprising of :
Share capital 71,406 70,937
Share capital-exercise of share options 225 153
Capital reserve 689 689
Foreign currency translation reserve (200) (89)
Share based payments reserve 681 736
Accumulated losses (21,359) (21,422)

51,442 51,004
Results of parent entity
Profit for the year 2,669 2,834
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 2,669 2,834

(b) Guarantees

(i) The parent entity has issued letters of guarantesuating to S$9,600,000 (2012: S$9,152,000) torgecu
trade facilities and factory loans to controlleditis.

(i) The parent entity has entered into a Deed of C@ssrantee and the subsidiaries subject to the ideed
disclosed in note 10.

(c) Contingent liabilities

The parent entity has no contingent liabilities anchmitments as at 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012.
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29. Subsequent events

(@) Redemption of redeemable loans stocks
On 1 July 2013, 3,016,772 redeemable loan stodR®imot Surgical Pte Ltd (“Biobot”) held by Zicomditlings
Pte Ltd has been fully redeemed by Biobot via fiseé of 1 ordinary share fully paid for every lstock held.
As a result, the Group equity interest in Biobotwaajusted to 91.8%.

(b) Incorporation of iPtec Pte Ltd

On 2 July 2013, Sys-Mac Automation Engineering|Rteincorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, iPtee P
Ltd, which will be principally engaged in medicathnology translation services.
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the directorZiebm Group Limited, | state that:

In the opinion of the directors:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

the financial statements and notes of the condelidantity are in accordance with t@erporations Act 2001
including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidatedityig balance sheet as at 30 June 2013 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (inting the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) an@orporations Regulations 2001

the financial statements and notes also comply Imirnational Financial Reporting Standards aslaoéed in
note 2.2.

there are reasonable grounds to believe that tihgp@oy will be able to pay its debts as and when leeome
due and payable.

this declaration has been made after receivingéctarations required to be made to the Directoescordance
with section 295A of th€orporations Act 200%or the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

as at the date of this declaration, there are nedde grounds to believe that the members of tlsed Group
identified in Note 10 will be able to meet any ghliions or liabilities to which they are or may bee subject,
by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

On behalf of the Board

GL Sim

Chairman/Managing Director
23 September 2013
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Zicom Group Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Zicom Group Limited, which comprises the
consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the
entities it controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors' responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 2.2, the directors
also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that
the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors' report.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability imited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
In our opinion:

a. the financial report of Zicom Group Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:

i giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 June 2013
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;
and

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 2.2.

Report on the remuneration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors' report for the year ended 30 June
2013. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Zicom Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2013,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

ém;t %

Ernst & Young

Ric Roach

Partner

Brisbane

23 September 2013

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



